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OUR OFFICE

We moved from the 24th Floor at
the Wing On Centre to the new
office on the 5th Floor on 17 August
2015. Our new office has been
designed to offer comfortable and
user-friendly facilities for our
examination candidates, learners,
members and event participants. Its
modern and open-plan layout also
provides an efficient, collaborative,
flexible and environment-friendly
workplace for our staff. The colours
were chosen to signify innovation,
integrity and professionalism.
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Our Vision and Mission

The Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute (the HKSI
Institute) was founded in 1997, with the support of the
Securities and Futures Commission (SFC), Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEx) and industry leaders to
set, raise and promote professional standards for the financial
services industry in Hong Kong.

Our Vision

e  To champion professional standards of excellence in
Hong Kong's financial services industry

e To contribute to Hong Kong's role as a leading
international financial centre

Our Mission
e  Setting standards through examinations and qualifications
o Raising standards through learning and professional

development programmes
o Promoting standards through membership community

The HKSI Institute and its Stakeholders

The Board and
Committees

EERREES

Members and
Practitioners

BERNWEAE

’ Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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Our Principal Activities

Our principal activities include the following four areas:

Examinations

We develop and maintain quality examinations for practitioners
engaged in regulated activities to meet licensing requirements
of the SFC. We also offer professional qualifications for
candidates to advance their careers in the financial services
industry.

Education and Development

We offer a wide range of classroom or computer-based
learning solutions to raise the professional standards of talents
in the financial services industry.

Membership

We develop a professional membership community to set
examples for practitioners and promote standards in the
industry. Our membership provides a unique platform for
professional exchange as we cover practitioners from the whole
spectrum of the financial services industry.

Outreach

We actively engage our stakeholders, from college students to
groom talents, to seasoned practitioners to give back to
society, by organising seminars and events to provide them
with timely industry and regulatory updates as well as
networking opportunities for their personal and professional
development needs.
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE
ERHRE

The financial year ended 31 March 2015 was a significant
year of development for Hong Kong's financial market and a
remarkable year of achievement for the HKSI Institute.

A Fruitful Year for the Financial Market and
the HKSI Institute

The launch of the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect pilot
programme (Stock Connect) in November 2014 has reinforced
Hong Kong's unique status as China’s global financial centre.
Prior to its launch, the annual HKSI Institute study mission took
a senior delegation to Shanghai in May 2014 to meet local
regulators, exchanges, government officials and corporate
leaders, and we exchanged views about the Stock Connect
programme at an opportune timing. We also organised a
series of three seminars to provide Members and practitioners
first-hand details of the Stock Connect operations from senior
executives of HKEx.

To set and raise practitioners’ standards in the private wealth
management (PWM) field, the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(HKMA) and the Private Wealth Management Association
(PWMA) jointly announced the launch of the Enhanced
Competency Framework (ECF) for PWM practitioners in June
2014. The HKSI Institute launched both the training programme
and examinations of the Certified Private Wealth Professional
(CPWP) Module 1 Programme under the ECF, which covers
technical, industry and product knowledge, during the current
year.

ﬂ Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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Continuing our long association with industry leaders, the
HKSI Institute was pleased to induct Dr Eddy Fong, Chairman
of the SFC from 2006 to 2012, as the 10th Honorary Fellow at
the Annual Autumn Dinner held in September 2014, since its
reception following the induction of The Hon Ronald Arculli
and Mr Andrew Sheng in 2013 and 2012 respectively. As head
of Hong Kong's regulatory body, Dr Fong helped strengthen
the city’s role as an international financial centre. It was
extremely befitting that the HKSI Institute honoured Dr Fong
in recognition of his contribution to Hong Kong's financial
services industry.

On 22 January 2015, we held our signature event, the Business
Ethics Forum (BEF) during the International Financial Week
following the Asian Financial Forum, to advocate ethical
behaviour and best practices specifically for the financial
industry. The full-day forum, themed “Ethics and Leadership”,
featured twenty distinguished speakers and panelists who
examined the inherent value of leadership in promoting
ethical behaviour, and its effects on business operations and
performance. On the same day, the HKSI Institute published
the inaugural issue of its quarterly technical newsletter, S.1.,
which aims at keeping Members abreast of up-to-date trends,
development, ethical issues and regulatory matters that affect
the industry.

Looking Ahead

The year ahead continues to be very opportunistic and
challenging. The launch of Stock Connect and the Mainland-
Hong Kong Mutual Recognition of Funds scheme on 1 July
2015 are the milestones of Mainland-Hong Kong financial
cooperation. The proposed Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock
Connect is anticipated to be rolled-out shortly. It is clear that
the Mainland-Hong Kong initiatives and the implementation
of China’s “one belt, one road” strategy provide excellent
opportunities for the markets and its participants. As always,
the HKSI Institute is well positioned to offer appropriate
programmes to equip Members and practitioners on these
developments. In addition, we will keep building and
strengthening regional ties. Our proactive approach of hosting
delegates from regulators, exchanges and financial institutions
from around the region in addition to our own mission trips
help cement existing relationships and establish new ones.
Showcasing our strengths to regional and international
jurisdictions will help endorse our position as the region’s
leading provider of education and examinations.
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE
TR

Talent grooming is one of the key priorities of the HKSI
Institute. The Financial Secretary in his 2015-16 Budget
speech proposed to launch a three-year pilot programme
(Pilot Programme) to further enhance talent training for the
insurance sector and the asset and wealth management sector.
$100 million was allocated to implement various initiatives to
enhance talent promotion and training. The HKSI Institute is
proud to be partnering with the Financial Services and the
Treasury Bureau ("FSTB") as the proposed implementation
agent of the Pilot Programme for the asset and wealth
management sector and is geared to launch various initiatives
under the Pilot Programme in the coming year.

Investing for the Future

The HKSI Institute continues to enhance its platform by rolling
out new initiatives to strengthen its operations as well as
offering more contemporary services to our Members. With
the support and inspiration from the SFC, a new management
information system (MIS) and advanced learning platform
(ALP) are under development. The new integrated systems will
enable us to better serve the learning community and other
stakeholders and to better provide online learning offerings for
Members and practitioners. The MIS and ALP are targeted for
launch in the first quarter of 2016 and the first quarter of 2017
respectively.

The new office we recently moved into brings together the
training/office area and the Computer-based Examination
Centre which was previously on a separate floor. The new
office is designed to offer more comfortable and user-friendly
facilities for our Members and service users. It also provides an
efficient, collaborative and environment-friendly workplace for
our staff.

Vote of Thanks

| shall retire as Chairman of the HKSI Institute this December
after the maximum of three one-year terms. It has been my
great privilege and honour to serve my fellow Members of the
HKSI Institute as Chairman. | will continue to remain a Board
Director for at least another year.

My sincere appreciation goes to Prof KC Chan, Secretary for
Financial Services and the Treasury, who is instrumental in
the HKSI Institute’s work. His encouraging words on talent
management at our Autumn Dinner is testament to our
Scholarship and Mentoring Programmes being on the right
track, the former being initiated during his tenure as our Board
Director prior to taking public office.

ﬂ Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015

BEATREBEMELER 22— - BHEA
AIRMN 2015 2016 T B F ETEE 2B HF
RE BUNEREBERI1EETHET—BEAH
ZFERLER S R ME E
BEEEARAAAEFI o BT #R
BETERSEES - g AT F - &
GREFHREFEEBREEREE &
BEEEEENEEERALETHHN
RS - W /R AT TE R R — A SRt
B THEEEE -

LeBERRREAREFTS  UiaEE Rk
AEERBARNRE - EFESH T
LEET B rEREETNEEEN
EZRNEENEBEIERAG c NES E
BARRMAEZEZ R EMmBHHmERE
BUMRE UK AEE RKEEABRE
BLREMNSEEN  c EBENERAREH
MEBEFEDRETER2016FE—F K
2017 FE—FHW o

N/

i

\

BAROBAFPLAE  REIIERBAR
HEEMUNS - BENEREATLE
MA—  FRAENRAEERSSE MR
BERERHEHFEL T EORE - FE
RETRESM - TEBENRRNTHE

BB o

Gl
E=ZE—FEMNETLRE - BN
SFERAHESREER B EWELT
IR RBZEEER  BESAANRRE
ZoHBEBRTEF B T8RRI —
& o

ANEBREHUREBREHRRBERK
B MHBEETIFERER - REUK
ERMMRETRELEBZEHEATER
e N BETRMNESS KA ARG E
JRIERE - MATE B ARBBEEETE /B
Al RBEgLEESHEMES -



| would also like to thank Mr Carlson Tong, Chairman of SFC
for his continuous guidance and support to the HKSI Institute.
His direct involvement is a boost to our work, and an anchor to
the HKSI Institute’s aspirations.

My gratitude also goes to Mr Ashley Alder, Chief Executive
Officer of SFC and Mr Charles Li, Chief Executive of HKEx for
continuing the valued tradition of speaking at our Roundtable
Luncheons. Their astute views of the industry and candid
sharing of their experiences are much appreciated by our
Members and practitioners alike.

Mr Arthur Yuen, Deputy Chief Executive of the HKMA, is
instrumental in launching the ECF of PWM industry. His recent
speech at our lunch event about the risk culture in the wealth
management industry was very insightful.

| would also like to thank Mr James Shipton, Executive Director,
Intermediaries, of the SFC for all his help, guidance and
support over the past years.

The results of this year’s work could not have been achieved
without the support of my fellow Board Directors and members
of various committees and other volunteers. | thank them
for their wise counsel and helpful guidance on the strategic
directions, as well as in supporting the initiatives developed in
person and in kind.

Last but not least, | am much appreciative of our dedicated
colleagues at the HKSI Institute. Under the capable leadership
of Chief Executive Mrs Edith Ngan Chan, the team has
rendered another year of productive work and solid service
to the industry. With concerted efforts of volunteers and the
Secretariat, | firmly believe that the HKSI Institute will continue
to grow, sharpen its competitive edge and deliver our mission
to create value for our Members and the financial services
industry.

Craig LINDSAY
Chairman
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S MESSAGE
ITTBAR RS

2014/15 is a rewarding year, reaping the fruits of the changes
and investments made, and new initiatives introduced in the
last two years. Some milestones to capture the journey and
celebrate the success are highlighted below:

Stabilising Financials

The financial results for the financial year ended 31 March 2015
exceeded our breakeven target. The Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income recorded a surplus of HK$3.16
million, compared to a deficit of HK$1.97 million recorded
in the previous financial year. Total revenue for the year
increased by 28% due to higher enrolment for examinations
and education and development programmes. Costs stabilised
while operating revenue grew 22% year on year, with all
revenue units recording positive revenue growth compared to
last year.

Promoting Standards for the Industry

We remain firmly committed to setting standards through
examinations and qualifications. With the Stock Connect
picking up momentum on both sides of the trades, enrolment
for Licensing Examinations for Securities and Futures
Intermediaries (LE) saw a solid rebound of approximately 15%
from the year before. The HKSI Institute also collaborated with
the Securities Association of China to extend LEs in Mainland
China beyond the test centres of Shanghai and Shenzhen.
Beijing, Xian and Wuhan have been added as test centres
since May 2015. Furthermore, the frequency and the number
of examination papers of LE in Mainland China were also
increased from Paper 1 once a year to four LE papers (Papers 1,
2, 6 and 16) three times a year.

ﬂ Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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Under the continued leadership of the PWM Steering
Committee and strong support of the Examinations
Committee, both Paper 1 and Paper 2 examinations and their
respective refresher courses for Module 1 of the CPWP for
PWM candidates were successfully launched during the year.

Enhancing Professional Education

We continue to raise professional standards through learning
and professional development programmes. With the
launch of Stock Connect, Preparatory Courses for LE and
the CPWP Module 1 Examinations and refresher courses,
our continuous professional training (CPT) offerings were
fully geared to support learners to prepare themselves for
relevant examinations and advancement in their careers.
Over 48,000 CPT hours were acquired via lunch seminars,
classroom and online courses. As we continue to upgrade our
customised offering capability, we saw an increase in corporate
programmes by 12%, representing over half of total CPT
hours earned. We are grateful to the continuous guidance and
supervision of the Education and Development Committee and
the Outreach Committee in ensuring the quality and relevance
of our programmes.

Strengthening Professional Community

Efforts in promoting our professional community were
landmarked by a number of key initiatives in Membership
offerings this year:

a) A new individual membership structure was introduced
to enable eligible Members to apply for progression to
Fellowship. The first cohort of 155 Fellows was inducted
at the 2014 Annual General Meeting (AGM);

b) Membership Ambassadors (Members who introduced
fellow practitioners to the HKSI Institute membership)
and CPT Stars (Members with high CPT hours) were
recognised to celebrate pursuit of excellence amongst
our community;
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S MESSAGE
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c¢) The BEF was relaunched from an in-house half-day
programme to a full day conference at the Hong
Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre as part of the
International Financial Week following the Asian Financial
Forum (see Feature Story — Business Ethic Forum 2015
from pages 91 to 96);

d)  “S.I.”, a quarterly technical newsletter was launched,
to update Members on industry hot topics, regulatory
insights, and the HKSI Institute leader profiles regularly
and on a timely basis.

The number of new Individual Members grew significantly
by 72% this year while that for new Corporate Members
achieved a 36% growth compared to last year. We thank the
Membership Committee for their support in helping the HKSI
Institute extend our community and uphold its quality.

New Initiatives and Office for the New
Chapter

With the support and inspiration from the SFC, the
development of a new management information system (MIS)
and advanced learning platform (ALP) are under development.
The new integrated systems will offer a variety of online
services and expanded learning offerings for our Members and
practitioners on an anytime anywhere basis, as well as enhance
the quality of our relationship management with stakeholders.
The systems will be delivered in phases with the MIS expected
to be launched in the first quarter of 2016. The ALP is targeted
for completion by the first quarter of 2017.

Coinciding with the new developments was a new look in
a "new” location. Taking advantage of our lease renewal
discussion and availability in the building, we recently moved
into a new office after 14 years at the previous one. The move
brings together the training/office area and the Computer-
based Examination Centre which was previously on a separate
floor. The office is designed to offer more comfortable and
user-friendly facilities for our Members and service users. It also
provides an efficient, collaborative and environment-friendly
workplace for our staff.

g Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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Beyond Gold

Looking ahead, we are not only dedicated to upholding gold
standards in our offerings, but also committed to going beyond
the improvements and innovations in business operations and
programme delivery achieved in the year of 2014/15.

We will strengthen our effort on nurturing talents for the future
of the Hong Kong financial industry through our mentoring
and scholarship programme. The Financial Secretary in his
2015-16 Budget speech proposed to allocate HK$100 million
to launch the Pilot Programme with various initiatives, including
an internship programme and financial incentive scheme for
professional training, for further enhancing talent training for
the insurance, asset and wealth management sector. The HKSI
Institute is proposed to be the implementation agent of the
pilot programme for the asset and wealth management sector.
It is aimed to launch the various initiatives starting early 2016.

Noting the financial reform for internationalisation from the
Mainland China via Hong Kong such as the Mutual Recognition
of Funds and the proposed Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock
Connect, the HKSI Institute will play a role as a central hub of
knowledge and industry connections to satisfy the industry’s
need of technical knowledge and market updates through
proactively offering a variety of education and development
programmes, and to provide an effective platform for our
Members and industry stakeholders of the two places to
cultivate networks as well as to explore business opportunities
through outreach visits and professional events.

Appreciation

It is a privilege to work with insightful and talented
professionals, who care deeply about the HKSI Institute and
its Members, to help the HKSI Institute to fulfill our mission
to contribute to Hong Kong's role as a leading international
financial centre. | would like to express my sincere thanks to
the Board of Directors for their guidance and support, and to
all our staff members for their continued dedication to deliver
desired results.

Edith Ngan Chan
Chief Executive
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OUR ORGANISATION AND GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
HAvARKERER

Organisational Structure
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The Board

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the HKSI
Institute, the Board exercises all the powers of the HKSI
Institute. It plays the important role of setting the strategy,
directions and policies of the HKSI Institute. It also provides
guidance and support to, as well as oversees the work of the
Chief Executive and the Secretariat. The Board delegates its
certain powers to various Committees.

For the 2015 term, the Board comprised 15 Directors with the
Chief Executive as an ex-officio member. The Directors are
experienced professionals from designated fields, consisting of
at least one, but no more than three, directors from each of the
following sectors: securities, futures, fund management,
investment analysts, corporate finance and academia in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the HKSI
Institute. It also requires at least one director, but not more
than three directors, to be appointed by the SFC. The HKSI
Institute is grateful for the wide range of experience and
expertise as well as a variety perspectives that the Directors
bring to us.

Board Members

Mr Craig LINDSAY (Chairman)/
Mr Bryan CHAN*

Mr Joseph CHAN*

Mr Ringo CHIU*

Mr Paul DAY#A

Prof Michael FIRTH

Ms Samantha HO*

Prof Vincent KWAN*

Dr Cynthia LAM

Mr Victor LEE#

Mr John MAGUIREA

Mr Louis MAK#A

Ms Katherine NG*

Mr Colin SHAFTESLEYA
Mr Derek SHEKA

Mr Trini TSANG

Mr Philip TYE*

Ms Anna WONG

Mr Peter WONG*

Mr Stephen WONG
Mrs Edith NGAN CHAN (Ex-officio Member)

# Appointed on 9 December 2014
* Retired from 9 December 2014
A Current Members of the Executive Committee
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Biographies of 2015 Board
2015 == BEE

Craig LINDSAY MEH
Chairman F &

Other HKSI-related positions (Chairman) RESETHWEMEBN (EE)

Advanced Learning Platform Steering Committee, Corporate FEBBVTEEELZEY  HEBEZRER

Advisory Council, Executive Committee, Space Committee g WTEEE  EHEAEZES

Past HKSI contributions BARSBENER

Audit Committee, Communications Committee, Corporate EBILES BEHEEY WEBHEWEE

Advisory Council, E-Committee, Editorial Committee, g EZEe REBLZEL - EHZLE

Examinations Committee, Executive Committee, Membership 2 -WTLEe 2#ZEg EEZE

Committee, Nomination Committee, Professional Education @ FEHELZES FEEHEZEE

Committee, Professional Events Committee

Current offices and public services BITHBR AR

o Senior Partner, China Alpha Fund Management (HK) . AESTEESERE(EE)BRAA

Limited =0ZS=F-IN

o Director, China Alpha Il Fund Limited o China Alpha Il Fund Limited %

e Director, China Alpha Master Fund Ltd e China Alpha Master Fund Ltd %

e Director, Global Integrity Alpha Fund Ltd e Global Integrity Alpha Fund Ltd 5

e Member, Financial Services Advisory Committee, HKTDC o HBAEBESEERPEIMRBHENAZES
%8

o Member, Steering Committee, Asian Financial Forum . THeRmEREZEGKE

e Secretary and Governor, The American Club Hong Kong e ZHENERES

o Honorary Treasurer & Council Member, St John's Cathedral o AR EEEFERIEEERE

Past offices and public services BAEBBR AR

e Chairman and Executive Director, China New Economy Fund e HEHKEREFERNITES

o Principal and CFO, Sattva Asia Opportunities Fund o Sattva Asia Opportunities Fund & 2
BBEANRMBHEE

e Vice President, Goldman Sachs & Co . SISt

ﬂ Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015



Joseph CHAN B i
Board Director &%

Other HKSl-related positions
Membership Committee, Mentoring Programme

Past HKSI contributions
Communications Committee, E-Committee, Editorial
Committee, Judging Panel of the Scholarship Programme,
Membership Committee

Current offices and public services

° Managing Director, Financial Markets, Standard
Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Member, Registration Committee, The Chinese Gold and
Silver Exchange Society

Member, Environment & Sustainability Committee, Hong

Kong General Chamber of Commerce

Co Opted Member, Small and Middle Enterprises
Committee, Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce
Member, Central and Western District Council

Vice President, Scout Association of Hong Kong -
Kowloon Region

Past offices and public services

° Senior Managing Director, Global Markets, Bear Stearns
Asia Limited

° Vice President, Global Markets, Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific)
Limited
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. Paul DAY
B &5,.\ Board Director & %

Other HKSI-related positions

Education and Development Committee (Chairman)

Advanced Learning Platform Steering Committee, Executive
Committee

Past HKSI contributions
Business Support Committee, Corporate Advisory Council,
Professional Education Committee

Current offices and public services

o Managing Director, Morgan Stanley Asia Ltd

° Co-Chair, Post Trade Committee, Asia Securities Industry
& Financial Markets Association

Michael FIRTH &8k
Board Director 8%

Other HKSl-related positions
Audit Committee

Past HKSI contributions
Audit Committee, Examinations Committee, Professional
Education Committee

Current offices and public services
e Hong Kong Economic Journal Chair — Professor of
Finance, Lingnan University

Past offices and public services
o Chair Professor of Accounting and Finance, The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University

ﬂ Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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Board Director &%

Other HKSl-related positions
Advisory Board of S.I., Examinations Committee, PWM Steering
Committee

Past HKSI contributions
Examinations Committee, PWM Steering Committee

Current offices and public services

o Honorary Professor, Faculty of Engineering, The University
of Hong Kong

e Associate Director, HKU Zhejiang Institute of Research
and Innovation

° Special Advisor, Central Policy Unit, HKSAR Government

Past offices and public services

° Executive Director, Executive Education, Faculty of
Business & Economics, The University of Hong Kong

° Professor, Faculty of Business & Economics, BNU-HKBU
United International College

° Honorary Professor, Faculty of Business Administration,
Hong Kong Baptist University

Vincent KWAN B &5
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Cynthia LAM ;25
Board Director &%

Other HKSI-related positions
Outreach Committee

Past HKSI contributions

Audit Committee, Budget and Audit Taskforce, Examinations
Committee, Executive Committee, Membership Committee,
Nomination Committee, Professional Education Committee,
Professional Events Committee

Current offices and public services
o Director, Bloomberg Tradebook Hong Kong Ltd

Vice-Chair and Director, The Institute of Securities Dealers
Ltd

Member, Process Review Panel, SFC

° Member, The 8th District Zhuhai Xiangzhou Chinese
People's Political Consultative Conference

Chairman, Nanping Residents (Hong Kong) Association

L]

Past offices and public services

° Member, Market Misconduct Tribunal

o Member, Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal

e Council Member, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
e Vice-Chair, Hong Kong Association of Online Brokers

ﬂ Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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Victor LEE Z=JE57
Board Director £%

Other HKSl-related positions
Examinations Committee

Past HKSI contributions
Examinations Committee

Current offices and public services

° Adviser, SM Investment

o Member, Development Council, Wadham College,
University of Oxford

Past offices and public services
° Managing Director, Pacific Regional Group, J.P. Morgan
Asset Management

A

o

= -

Louis MAK %3 &
Board Director €%

Other HKSl-related positions

Outreach Committee (Chairman)

Advanced Learning Platform Steering Committee, Executive
Committee, Mentoring Programme, Space Committee

Past HKSI contributions

Advisory Council, Communications Committee, Corporate
Membership Committee, E-Committee, Professional Events
Committee

Current offices and public services
° Chief Executive Officer, I-Access Group Limited
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Board Director £%

Other HKSI-related positions

Membership Committee (Chairman), Judging Panel of the
Scholarship Programme (Chairman)

Advanced Learning Platform Steering Committee, Executive
Committee, Mentoring Programme

Past HKSI contributions
Communications Committee, E-Committee, Editorial
Committee, Executive Committee, Membership Committee

Current offices and public services

° Head of Corporate Finance, REORIENT Financial Markets
Limited

Deputy Chairman, Takeovers and Mergers Panel, SFC
Member, Listing Committee, The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited

o Member, Takeovers Appeal Committee, SFC

Alternate Member, Nominations Committee, SFC

Member, Committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts,
SFC

Past offices and public services

o Managing Director, RHB OSK Hong Kong Limited

o Managing Director, Ernst & Young Corporate Finance
Limited

ﬂ Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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Katherine NG {h 28
Board Director £%

Other HKSl-related positions
Outreach Committee

Current offices and public services

o Senior Vice President, Head of Policy — Listing
Department, HKEx

° Trustee Member, Development Committee of World
Wide Fund For Nature Hong Kong

. Director, Charitable Choice

Past offices and public services

o Political Assistant to the Secretary for Financial Services
and the Treasury, HKSAR Government

° Director, Sales and Trading Counsel, Merrill Lynch

° Solicitor, Linklaters

Derek SHEK A& 1E
Board Director £%

Other HKSl-related positions
Audit Committee, Executive Committee

Past HKSI contributions
Audit Committee, Examinations Committee, Executive
Committee

Current offices and public services
° Director of Licensing, SFC
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e

Colin SHAFTESLEY A4
Board Director &%

Other HKSI-related positions
Examinations Committee (Chairman)
Executive Committee, Mentoring Programme

Past HKSI contributions

Audit Committee, Communications Committee, E-Committee,
Examinations Committee, Executive Committee, Membership
Committee, Professional Events Committee

Current offices and public services
° Partner, Financial Services Practice, PriceWaterhouseCoopers

o Honorary Secretary and Treasurer, Sailors Home and

Missions to Seafarers

Vice Chairperson, Executive Committee, Treats

Member, Balloting Committee, The Hong Kong Club

° Member, Food, Wine and Social Sub-Committee, The
Hong Kong Club

Past offices and public services

e Chairman, Expert Panel on Securities, Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants

o Member, Share Registrars’ Disciplinary Committee, SFC

o Member, Advisory Committee for Department of
Accountancy, City University of Hong Kong
° Executive Board Member, Asian Youth Orchestra

ﬂ Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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Trini TSANG EEE
Board Director &%

Other HKSl-related positions
Advanced Learning Platform Steering Committee, Audit
Committee, Mentoring Programme

Past HKSI contributions
Audit Committee, Communications Committee, E-Committee,
Editorial Committee, Examinations Committee

Current offices and public services

o Executive Director and General Manager, Wocom
Holdings Ltd

° Panel of Adjudicators, 2015 Best Annual Reports Awards,
The Hong Kong Management Association (Representing
the HKSI Institute)

Past offices and public services

° Panel of Adjudicators, 2013 and 2014 Best Annual Reports
Awards, The Hong Kong Management Association
(Representing the HKSI Institute)

° Member, GEM Listing Committee, The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong

e Council Member, The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

o Panel of Examiners, The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
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Anna WONG ZE#
Board Director &%

Other HKSI-related positions
PWM Steering Committee (Chairman)
Membership Committee, Mentoring Programme

Past HKSI contributions
Membership Committee, Nomination Committee, Professional
Education Committee, PWM Steering Committee

Current public services

° Member, Financial Reporting Review Panel, Financial
Reporting Council

o Member, Securities and Futures Appeal Tribunal

° Director, Hong Kong Sports Institute Limited

Past offices and public services

° Head of Private Banking, Greater China, Credit Suisse
Private Bank

Chief Executive Officer, HSBC Broking Services (Asia)
Limited

Member, Advisory Committee, SFC

o Director, Hong Kong Securities Association

a Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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Other HKSl-related positions
Audit Committee (Chairman)
Education and Development Committee

Past HKSI contributions

Stephen WONG T f& i
Board Director &%

Audit Committee, Corporate Advisory Council, Professional

Education Committee

Current offices and public services

° Member, Cash Market Consultative Panel, HKEx

Past offices and public services

o Managing Director, Head of Brokerage Business, China

Merchants Securities (HK) Co Ltd

° Chief Executive Officer, HSBC Broking Services (Asia)

Limited

° Member, Clearing Consultative Panel, HKEx
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Biography of Chief Executive
TR B

Edith NGAN CHAN FREES 3%

Chief Executive 1TER 42 %k

Current public services BT AW

e Member, Investment Advisory Committee, Sir David s HBEUBLTRELESRELKNAZES
Trench Fund for Recreation B &

e Chairman, Audit Committee, Lingnan University s BEEMAREFINEZESE

o Member, Investment Committee, Environment and . §/9§¢TEEK}T$&¢R&Q%1%E Ee®
Conservation Fund, HKSAR Government BLREGKE

e Deputy Chairwoman, Board of Governors, International e WEIREBEZEXALTIEBEEREEBYFYS
Learning Platform for Investment Professionals, EE2EFE
Switzerland

o Member, Executive Committee, Asian Securities and . BN NEFERERAESWITEE
Investment Federation, Australia ok 8

e Chair, Board of Directors, Stanford Club of Hong Kong e EAEXLABAREELSEETSER

Past offices and public services BEBBER AR

e Executive Director, Asia Society Hong Kong Center e TMNHEEETLBITESR

° Regional Managing Director, Asia Pacific, ABN AMRO ° ABN AMRO Fund Services (Asia)
Fund Services (Asia) Limited Limited 98 K [ E F 42 47 18

° Chief Executive Officer, INVESCO Asia Ltd o SIEREERER A BTTERAAE

e Convenor, Financial Reporting Review Panel, Financial e UHBEBRRMBERBNEZEEH
Reporting Council AEA

o Member, Advisory Committee, Human Resources . BEEBRBNMEEBERERERDIYE

Development in the Financial Services Sector, FSTB,
HKSAR Government

° Member, Committee on Unit Trust, SFC o

° Member, Investor Education Committee, SFC o

o Operations Review Committee of the Mandatory .
Provident Fund Scheme Authority

. Chairman, Hong Kong Investment Fund Association o

a Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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Chairman and Chief Executive

The Chairman of the Board is elected by the Directors of the
Board at any Board meeting to be held prior to each AGM
provided that such election shall be deemed to take effect
from the conclusion of such AGM. The Chief Executive is an ex-
officio member of the Board. The current Chairman and Chief
Executive are Mr Craig Lindsay and Mrs Edith Ngan Chan
respectively.

Committees and Advisory Council

The Board established and delegated its power to six
committees, each of them is chaired by a Board Director and is
responsible to the Board for issues and matters pertaining to
the HKSI Institute’s clearly-defined areas of operations. They
play important roles not only in helping the HKSI Institute to
formulate its strategy and direction but also in controlling
quality and integrity of its programmes and operations. In
addition, members of the Committees support our
programmes by providing and/or referring sponsorships,
recruiting delegates via their professional networks and
participating actively.

Ad-hoc Committees shall be established to assist the Board to
advise the HKSI Institute for any specific projects or initiatives.
Ad-hoc Committees during the current financial year include
Space Committee (see page 99), PWM Steering Committee
(see page 63) and Advanced Learning Platform Steering
Committee (see page 100).

The Corporate Advisory Council (CAC) is also established by
the Board, as an advisory and liaison forum of the Corporate
Membership to the HKSI Institute. Chaired by the Chairman,
the CAC is a thought leadership platform comprising
representative top executives from local, Mainland, regional
and international financial services firms.

The HKSI Institute is grateful for the valuable support and
contribution of the members of the Committees and CAC.
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Committee
ZEE
Executive
Committee

HTZREE

Examinations
Committee

EHZREE

Education and
Development
Committee
FHEEVZE®

Chairman
3

Mr Craig Lindsay
MEHRLE

Mr Colin Shaftesley
AHFELE

Mr Philip Tye

(1 April 2014 to

31 December 2014) and
Mr Paul Day

(1 January 2015 onwards)
Philip Tye %24
(2014F4R18B%E
20145 12A318) &
Paul Day Jt &
(B2015F1A1H#)

*  During the financial year

REREER

Major responsibilities of the Committee

ZEENTEER

Act in the capacity and with the full authority of the
Board in the conduct of ordinary business of the
HKSI Institute and on matters specifically delegated
by the Board

Develop forward plans and strategies according to
the direction set by the Board

Monitor the progress on the implementation of the
Board's policies and decisions

Review the budget prepared by the Secretariat and
submit to the Board for approval
EEeHREBBART IRESZREIRRNEE
WEFNITEREZEEZRNEHEN

RIBE R BRI T R T8I KR
EREZRBRMRRNERER
ENNERRRNAERREREEREL.

Provide direction and guidance on the overall

strategy and work plan regarding curriculum and

examinations

Advise on design and development, quality

assurance and security control issues regarding

curriculum and examinations

Recommend subject matter experts

REBERIELEARBRE R TSN AR
58

REBERELZANRGEIERE  BRFRENL
IR B R

HEEEEFENER

Provide direction and guidance on education and
development policy, professional training,
development framework and quality assurance
standards

Advise and/or identify the education and
development needs and priorities

To perform quality review on our courses or
programmes

Recommend subject matter experts
REFERERIBR  FRE  BRERLE
ERERENT A RIEE

BER IEERERNFERLREBLEFL
EEEeREHENER
HEEEFAEENER

ﬂ Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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*

Committee Chairman
ZEE ES:
Membership Mr John Maguire
Committee BEMAE

PN =
SHLZET

Outreach Mr Louis Mak
Committee BHERE
INEERED

Audit Committee  Mr Stephen Wong
EtZE® TresTE

During the financial year

RERFEEAR

Major responsibilities of the Committee

EEENIESH

Advise on the recruitment of members from target
industry segments and on service offerings and
benefit packages proposed by the Secretariat

Act as ambassadors to promote the HKSI Institute
membership

Review and approve membership applications from
individuals and corporations and fellowship
progression

Review reported disciplinary cases and make
recommendations to the Board for appropriate
actions

RRERTEREEEE  RERBERUANMER
RENSEEERHEE

EEAEHRESEESR
ERHEARRBERAFLERGENET
FELRNERARYNESREREETY

Identify themes and propose format for outreach
programmes

Propose relevant communication channels and
advise on content and coverage

Advise, comment and recommend appropriate
external relations partners and activities
EEMNREBHNTEREZRTNARA
REMEEERRENEZNDNEELE

EF M EREENEINERSERH TS

Review annual audited financial statements and
recommend approval

Recommend the appointment of external auditor to
the Board

Meet with external auditor, consider audit findings
and recommendations, and monitor implementation
Review accounting and internal control procedures
and make recommendations to the Board
EHEELBTBRRIEZME

M E EBEEE NP ZEED
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Examinations Committee EZXRE8S
Mr Colin SHAFTESLEY (Chairman) AHEFELRE(ER)
Ms Julia CHARLTON* AleELZ L™
Ms Catherine CHEUNG REHRT
Mr Thomas HULME PR R
Mr Robert JONES B e
Prof Vincent KWAN I o 7 U
Mr Christopher LEE FEHTE
Mr Eugene LEE =N 398
Mr Roger LEE FER L
Mr Victor LEE EE e
Mr William LEUNG* REBEAE
Ms Alexandra LO* FEEEL L
Mr Gordon NG REREE
Ms Molly TAM BHEL L
Mr Trini TSANG* S LA
Mr Timothy TSE AEAAL 4
Mrs Judy VAS FEEE 4+
Mr Ronald WAN PN A
Ms Jill WONG BERRLT
Mr Ben KWOK (Secretary) BRELAE (WE)
*  Member of 2014
2014 K B

Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015



Education and Development Committee

Mr Paul DAY (Chairman)
Mr Philip TYE* (Chairman)
Mr Steven BERNSTEIN
Ms Julia CHARLTON

Ms Maria CHENG

Mr Gary CHEUNG

Dr Richard CHOW

Mr Graham COTTINGHAM
Mr Oliver GOH

Mr Eric HO*

Ms Yvonne HSIN

Mr Thomas HULME*

Ms Phyllis LEE

Mr Kevin LIEM

Mr Allen TZE

Dr Ronald WAN*

Miss Barbara WANG

Mr Ambrose WONG

Mr Ernest WONG*

Mr Stephen WONG

Mr Joseph YU*

Ms Ruth KUNG (Secretary)
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BANAEASRERS

Membership Committee
Mr John MAGUIRE (Chairman)
Mr Barry CHAN

Mr Joseph CHAN

Ms Vivian CHAN

Mr Paul CHENG

Mr Patrice CONXICOEUR*
Mr Stephen HUI*

Dr Bill KWOK

Dr Kent LAI

Mr Baldwin LEE

Mr Dannis LEE

Ms Anthea LEUNG*

Mr Charles NG

Mr Philip TYE

Mr Lewis WAN

Ms Anna WONG

Mr Peter WONG*

Mr Bernard WU

Ms Judith YUEN

Ms Daisy LO (Secretary)

* Member of 2014
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Outreach Committee
Mr Louis MAK (Chairman)
Mr Robert BUNKER
Mr Bryan CHAN*

Dr Eva CHAN

Ms Majone CHENG
Mr Clement HO

Ms Samantha HO*

Mr Stephen HUI

Miss Angelina KWAN*
Dr Cynthia LAM

Mr Stuart LECKIE

Mr Baldwin LEE*

Mr Lawrence LEE

Mr Bonn LIU

Mr Benson LO

Ms Katherine NG

Mr Kenju OGYU

Mr Martin ROGERS
Mr Alec TSUI*

Mr Joseph YAU

Ms Daisy LO (Secretary)
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Audit Committee EtERYS

Mr Stephen WONG (Chairman) FrEEmEE(EFE)

Ms Samantha HO* (Chairman) RER L T * (£F)

Mr Ringo CHIU* i B 5 S A *

Prof Michael FIRTH BRI

Mr Derek SHEK AEBEA

Mr Trini TSANG TS ST

Mr Alex MAK (Secretary) BIRE o (WE)
* Member of 2014
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Corporate Advisory Council

T gt e Ty

During the financial year, the CAC met once on 8 October 2014
where Mr Roger Lee, Head of Market Operations, HKEx, was
invited to share with the CAC members details of the Stock
Connect at an opportune timing. In addition, CAC members
contributed invaluable thoughts for the BEF 2015, a signature
event of the HKSI Institute, which was scheduled on 21 January
2015, in the meeting. We are grateful for the guidance from Mr
Roger Lee on the Stock Connect, as well as the advice from the
CAC members to make the BEF 2015 a successful event.

On 12 May 2015, the CAC invited the newly appointed
Executive Director, Investment Products Division of the SFC,
Ms Julia Leung, to share her views on the recent vibrant
financial market development in relation to Mainland China’s
change of regulations and policies; and progress of investment
products authorisation process. Furthermore, the BEF 2016
Organising Committee Chair, Mr Bonn Liu (Partner, Financial
Services, KPMG), led the discussion on the BEF 2016
preparatory work. The CAC was also briefed about the talent
grooming initiatives of the Financial Services and Treasury
Bureau (FSTB). We were grateful that we received invaluable
inputs and advice from the CAC members during the
interactive discussion.
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Corporate Advisory Council Members

*

Mr Craig LINDSAY (Chairman) — the HKSI Institute

Mr Pedro BASTOS — HSBC Global Asset
Management (HK) Ltd

Ms Agnes CHAN — Ernst & Young
Dato’ CHEAH Cheng Hye — Value Partners Group Ltd

Mr CHEN Ge — Guosen Securities (HK) Financial
Holdings Co Ltd

Mrs Mignonne CHENG — BNP Paribas Wealth Management

Mr Stephen CLARK — Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance Ltd*

Mr Fred CLATWORTHY —
Morgan Stanley Asia Ltd

Mr Siju DANIEL — FXCM Asia Ltd*
Mr Tony ESPINA — Goldride Securities Ltd*

Mr GUO Chun — Shenwan Hongyuan Securities (H.K.) Limited

Mr JIANG Xianzhou — China Construction Bank
(Asia) Corporation Ltd

Ms Wendy LAM — GF Holdings (HK) Corporation Ltd

Mr Jed LASKOWITZ — JP Morgan
Asset Management (HK) Ltd

Mr Lawrence LEE — Baker & McKenzie

Mr LEE Seng Huang — Sun Hung Kai & Co Ltd*

Ms Susan LI — China International Capital Corporation Ltd*
Mr LIN Yong — Haitong International Securities Group Ltd
Mr Weber LO — Citibank, N.A.

Mr Peter LO — Deutsche Bank A.G.

Mr Louis MAK — |-Access Group Ltd*

Mr Takeshi NISHIDA — Nomura International
(Hong Kong) Ltd

Mr Kenju OGYU — Toyo Securities Asia Ltd

Mr Minoru SHINOHARA — Nomura International
(Hong Kong) Ltd*

Dr TAN Yueheng — BOCOM International Holdings Co Ltd
Mr YIN Ke — CITIC Securities International

Dr YIM Fung — Guotai Junan Securities
(Hong Kong) Ltd*

Dr ZHAO Hongwei — Cinda International Holdings Ltd

Member of 2014
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The Secretariat

The Secretariat, headed and supervised by the Chief Executive,
is responsible for the daily operations of the HKSI Institute. As
of 31 March 2015, the Secretariat has 48 full time employees in
the departments of Curriculum and Examinations, Education
and Development, Membership and Outreach, Finance and
Operations and Chief Executive Office.

Risk Management and Internal Control

As a professional examination, education and membership
organisation, we strive to manage external and internal risks to
ensure secured and smooth operations, including reputational,
information security, financial, and operational. We put in place
the following internal control measures to manage those risks:

e  Stringent quality assurance and security policies and
procedures are implemented to ensure the quality and
integrity of our examination papers.

e An independent external consulting firm is engaged to
conduct an “Information Security Risk Assessment” for
our examination operations on a regular basis to ensure
the integrity of its operations and examination question
banks.

° A comprehensive information security policy is
implemented to protect confidentiality and integrity of
information, such as personal information of our
members, event and training participants, and
examination candidates.

e A robust and structured membership admission
mechanism is deployed to uphold the quality and
integrity of our membership base.

o Robust financial control and reporting processes,
including annual budgeting, payment requisition and
authorisation, and cash flow management are established
(see Business Review — Finance and Operations on
pages 97 to 100).

o System and physical access controls are implemented to
safeguard against unauthorised access to system and
office premises.

e A business continuity plan is formulated to cover our
office premises and computer equipment for any possible
issues such as fires, technical failure and other
emergencies.
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OUR ORGANISATION AND GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

BPNEASRELRER

Compliance with Rules and Regulations

As a professional organisation, the HKSI Institute is committed
to the overall regulatory compliance of accounting, tax and
other required local legal requirements.

External Auditor

KPMG have been appointed as the honorary auditor of the
HKSI Institute’s financial statements since our establishment in
1997. We are grateful to the generous services of KPMG
throughout the years.

General Meetings

EGM 2014

An Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) was held on 23
September 2014 to consider the special resolution for
amendments to the Articles of Association (AA) of the HKSI
Institute. These included changes made to the membership
structure and amendments to the AA to comply with
requirements set out by the Company Registry and the new
Companies Ordinance. All the changes and amendments were
approved by the Members as well as the Companies Registry.

One of the amendments enabled the creation of a new “Senior
Fellow” membership class. In addition, our “Student”
membership class, originally offered to LE candidates only, was
redefined for full-time post-secondary students to replace the
additional layer of Affiliate membership. LE candidates are
invited to apply directly for “Associate” or “Ordinary”
membership as appropriate. Moreover, voting rights and
complimentary Individual Membership are offered to
Corporate Members to increase their engagement with the
HKSI Institute and provide more benefits to their staff. Other
amendments included changing the status of the Chief
Executive from being a Board Director to an ex-officio capacity,
in line with similar board practices.
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AGM 2014

The seventeenth AGM of the HKSI Institute was held on 9
December 2014. Mr Joseph Chan (Managing Director, Financial
Markets, Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited), Mr
Paul Day (Managing Director and Head of Asia Operations,
Morgan Stanley), Prof Vincent Kwan (Honorary Professor, The
University of Hong Kong), Mr Victor Lee (Adviser, SM
Investment) and Mr Louis Mak (Chief Executive Officer, I-Access
Group Limited) were elected as Directors of the Board with
effect from 9 December 2014. Directors of the Board continuing
their terms are Mr Craig Lindsay, Prof Michael Firth, Dr Cynthia
Lam, Mr John Maguire, Mr Colin Shaftesley, Mr Trini Tsang and
Ms Anna Wong.

In addition, three Directors were appointed by the SFC,
including the newly appointed Ms Katherine Ng (Senior Vice
President and Head of Policy of the Listing Department, HKEx),
and two re-appointed directors, Mr Derek Shek (Director of
Licensing, SFC) and Mr Stephen Wong (Formerly Managing
Director and Head of Brokerage Business, China Merchants
Securities (HK) Co. Ltd).
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LEADERS OF THE HKSI INSTITUTE
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Honorary Fellows

KK BRI e 2
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Year £ Name &7

2015 Miss AU King Chi [& 3% %9/ 48
2014 Dr Eddy FONG 75 [Ef§ =+

2013 The Hon Ronald ARCULLI EEE 54
2012 Mr Andrew SHENG LB/ 5 4
2011 Mrs Laura CHA S & faZc+
2010 Dr Edgar CHENG Zp#fi i+
2009 Mr Paul CHOW &SR % &
2008 Mr Anthony NEOH 27 #5t 4
2007 Mr Gordon JONES $&13 Bt 4
2006 Dr LEE Quo Wei F|BZiH+
2005 Mr Charles LEE ZZE L4

Senior Fellows
HHE RSB

Dr AU King Lun [& = Bi1E+

Mr Robert BUNKER ¥ 5K €45 4
Mr Henry CHAN BR &8 % &

Mr Desmond CHAN PR Bl ¢ 5t 4
Mr Bryan CHAN BR3R58 504

Mr CHAN Wing Luk Bk fE %t 4
Ms Julia CHARLTON A& &+t
Mr Gary CHEUNG 3k 7 B 55 4=
Dr Richard CHOW Ef/&E1E 1
Ms CHOW Yuen Yee FEffifEZ +
Mr Stephen CLARK #7378 %4
Mr Paul FAN SEAA & 54

Prof Michael FIRTH &8z 0%
Mr Andrew FUNG 5 85t 4
Mr Gerald GREINER B £ 554
Ms Samantha HO fal/flg8 22 4
Mr George HONGCHOY Bk 4
Mr Stephen HUI #F 88 AR 5L 4
Miss Angelina KWAN F3% /| 48
Mr Edward KWAN & & 8 5t 4E
Dr Bill KWOK ZFEiZ21iE 4

Prof LAM Kin #REEZ#%

Dr Cynthia LAM #RZE§1E 1

Ms Alice LAW R4+

Mr Baldwin LEE Z &4 5t 4

Mr Dannis LEE 21 S &

Mr Eugene LEE ZERK 5t 4
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Mr Lawrence LEE &84 4

Mr Roger LEE Z=B58 504

Mr LEONG Ka Chai 2R 5 %4
Mr LI Ming Kit ZERRAESE A

Mr Craig LINDSAY #RE#H 5 4

Mr David LUl &8 & L4

Mr John MAGUIRE 2= st 4
Mr Anthony MUH IR =5t 4

Mr Gerry NG &AL A

Mr Kenju OGYU kA& wftal 5t &

Mr Martin ROGERS Z& 57t 4+
Mr Colin SHAFTESLEY A#9F %4
Mr Derek SHEK A 51854

Mr Stewart SHING B Z 54

Ms Barbara SHIU AR ER 2+

Mr Sivagnana SINGHAM = BhZE 50 4£
Ms Tina SO &8 £+

Mr Michael SZE £ 8 ¥4

Mr Trini TSANG & BEfE o4

Mr Samuel TSANG &R R 44
Mr Alec TSUI R 1R EE St 4

Mr Philip TYE

Mr John WILLIAMSON #H{E MR £
Mr Richard WINTER &8sk 4 4
Ms Anna WONG EZ& 4+

Mr Peter WONG =R R 4



Mr lain BRUCE

Mr CHAM Shek Yuen SE$5 8 %4
Ms Hannah CHAN [S356 2z +
Mr CHAN Kar Lok FR 2R £ % 4
Mr CHAN Kin Wai FRIZ & 5t &=
Ms Christina CHAN BREE L+
Ms Jaime CHAN [RE57% 2z +

Dr Elex CHAN BREEEE +

Mr Arnold CHAN PR3 B 4 4
Mr Dennis CHAN P& ZE 4 4

Mr Barry CHAN Bk B5% A4

Dr William CHAN BRIBAK 18 £
Mr Roy CHEN BRI R %8 &

Mr Paul CHENG Z5E%2 % 4

Mr Michael CHENG &8 #1554
Mr CHENG Po Kee #[{REH 54
Mr Felix CHEUNG R (&R 5t 4
Mr Wyman CHENG PR X5t 4E
Ms Alison CHEUNG sRZE &z +

Miss Catherine CHEUNG 3R Z &/ )\t

Mr Louis CHEUNG SR BB L4
Mr CHEUNG Yik Cho 5k 48 % &
Mr Philip CHEUNG SR H % 4
Mr Steve CHIU H/NE Jo 4

Prof Stella CHO 7 B { B 245
Mr Christopher CHONG 5RAFZE 5L 4
Mr Joseph CHOW JEI#EZE St 4
Mr CHUA Hung Fai 2538 58 4
Dr Ronald CHUNG =18+
Ms Mingnie CHUNG &8 ¥ & &
Mr Graham COTTINGHAM

Mr Derek CRANE

Mr Christopher DRAKE

Mr Harald DUDOK VAN HEEL
Mr Philippe ESPINASSE

Mr Douglas EU RE MR T E

Mr Alan EWINS

Mr Brian FUNG 5 188E 54

Mr Oliver GOH

Mr Philip GRAY

Mr William HAMILTON

Mr Simon HARDING

Mr HO Ka Fai {a/ 518 5 4

Mr Joseph HO fa] B #E 5 &

Mr HO Lic Ki fa] 7B 54

Ms Anna HO il &4+

Mr Jimmy HO i #k R 5t &

Dr HO Wing Chiu a5k 1§+
Mr Sanly HO a2 & 5t &

Mr Patrick HUEN #§5k B 9 &

Mr Martin HUI FF R & e 4

Mr Wilson HUI F& 4

Mr HUI Yuet Man FF15 X 54
Mr IP Wa Hing BEE 8t 4

Mr Anthony KAM BIZ2 81 5t 4
Mr Billy Albert KAN f& 75 B2 5L 4
Mr John KNOX

Mrs Christine KOO Ea5k X 3 &+
Miss Shirley KWAN BEZEZE/ME
Mr KWAN Wai Man BIEE X 44
Mr KWOK Chee Kit P54 55 4
Mr KWOK Shun Tim SR 4015 5 4
Mr KWOK Kam Hoi 334 /&5 4
Mr KWONG Man Bun BB 4t £
Mr Peter LAl 225k B Jc 4

Mr LAl Ngan Tim f8 R AR %4
Mr Martin LANCASTER

Ms LAU Suk Yin 2R & 2+

Mr LAW Ka Kin ZB R % £

Mr LAW Pui Cheung Z&5M & 5t 4
Miss Angela LEE =35 /)NE

Mr Victor LEE ZEB X, 55 4

Mr Samuel LEE R4

Mr Frankie LEE Z=+E 44

Mr Matthew LEE Z#1{Z 554

Ms Phyllis LEE 2% 22+

Mr LEONG Kin Bong I 5 4E
Mr Rabo LEUNG & 5/t 4
Miss Anthea LEUNG Z2Z22Hf}/|\4H
Mr William LEUNG S Bt E
Mr Alex LEUNG R &L

Mr Fredric LEUNG Z2 B4 5t 4
Mr Kevin LEUNG 220 # 56 4
Ms LEUNG Mei Ling ZZFE% &+
Ms Alice LEUNG 27+
Ms Shirley LEUNG Z#i%% 22 1
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BeE
Fellows Ms LI Wai Kuen =2 igL+ Mr TO Man Fai i 308 %4
BERgE Mr Mark LIN #3246 5¢ 4 Ms Elly TSANG & E ¥4+
Mr James LIU BB A Mr Sidney TSE #1888 7t 4
Ms Alexandra LO Z&ZEE &+ Mr Henry TSE &5k 58 55 4
Mr Albert LO ZBEZ £ Mr Pascal VINAIS
Mr Charles LO #5R8R3 %t & Dr Enzio VON PFEIL
Mr David LO #{&38 5t 4 Mr WAI Sing Kwong {175 & 5t 4
Mr Lawrence LOK £&[B]FE 5t 4 Mr Lewis WAN FimzEL 4
Mr Ross LONG Mr Felix WANG EERE &4
Mr Jean-Remi LOPEZ Mr Alex WANG T JBFZ 5L 4
Mr Paul LOWNDES #g:8+ %4 Mr John WATT
Prof LUl Yu Hon BJZEZIR Mr Ambrose WONG &= 153t 4t 4
Mr MA Kwong Wing 5 E& %4 Mr David WONG = B %4
Mr Simon MACLEAN Mr Gary WONG &/ IR £
Mr Robert MACPHERSON Z844 #7 90 £ Ms Margie WONG EE&HXZ T
Mr Dantes MAK Z8 [ 5¢ 4 Miss Cynthia WONG =8/ 8
Mr MAN Kam Chiu 38818 % 4 Prof SF WONG &K B 1%
Mr lan MCEVATT Dr Andrew WONG E& &8+
Mr MOK Kin Wai B 52{& %t 4 Mr William WU RFE£ 584
Miss Mary NG = &52/ 48 Mr Bernard WU R{B#E T4
Mr Daniel NG SR 5 £ Mr Henry Clement YAU ERE24& 5t 4
Mr Charles NG RAFZE L4 Mr Joseph YAU B & & st &
Mr Anthony NG R i#{Z 564 Ms Charlotte YEN (555 &+
Ms Cecilia NG RER 2+ Mr Florey YEUNG 15 B4 5t 4
Mr NGAI Wah Sang 2824 5t 4 Mr Anthony YEUNG #5/@ 5t 4
Mrs Edith NGAN CHAN PREEX 3 2+ Ms YEUNG Yuk Ming % ERRZz £
Mr Jack NGO B &£ 8954 Mr Benjamin YIP E5 554
Mr Peter PANG S21& X5 4 Mr Andrew YIU Bt = &8 5t 4
Mr Warren PHILLIPS Mr YIU Pak Chow Zk{AFK 7 4
Mr POON Chiu Kwok 3%z B 5 4 Ms Alice YU BFM& s %+
Mr Richard PYVIS Mr YU King Ho RERZ 554
Mr Richard ROQUE Z&#& &5t 4& Mr Joseph YU FE&E L 4E
Mr Herman SETO RIfEN &4 Dr Bernard YU Rig4£ 18+
Prof SO Chi Ming &% BR#U% Mr Ben YUEN [t 3 55 4
Mr Jarvis SZE eS8 St Ms Judith YUEN = a] 3 /)\ 42
Mr Ricky TAM =B 43 B15E 4 Mr Oliver YUEN = EE#E 5T
Ms Miranda TANG B & E&&X + Mr Jackson YUEN =& o4
Miss TANG Kit Wan &2/ |\t Mr Roger YUEN It 8856 4
Mr Mark TAYLOR
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Corporate Nominees*

Mr Barry CHAN

China International Capital Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited

Mr Stephen CHANG
JF Asset Management Limited

Mr CHEN Yat Sun
Noble Securities Company Limited

Ms CHENG Pui Lai
CASH Financial Services Group Limited

Ms Shirley CHEUNG
Phillip Securities (Hong Kong) Ltd

Mr CHIANG Cheng Yeh
E.SUN Commercial Bank Ltd.

Mr CHIANG Hok Yuen
Citigroup Global Markets Asia Limited

Mr Raymond CHU
Guosen Securities (HK) Financial Holdings Company Limited

Mr FUNG Hong Keung
eprint Group Limited

Mr HUI Peng
Rongshi International Holding Co. Ltd.

Mr Vincent LAl
Kingsway Financial Services Group Limited

Mr LAU Mun Chung
Cinda International Holdings Limited

Mr Francis LAU
AFE Solutions Ltd.

Mr LEE Chong Kuang
Greenpro Inc

Ms Phyllis LEE
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Mr LEE Yui Leung
BOCI-Prudential Asset Management Limited

Mr Michael LI
Nomura Asset Management Hong Kong Limited
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Corporate Nominees*

Mr Raymond LUI
Hang Seng Investment Management Limited

Mr MA Hung Wah
Phillip Securities (Hong Kong) Ltd

Mr Chris MEAD
GAM Hong Kong Limited

Mr Raymond NG
CASH Financial Services Group Limited

Mr Jurg NIEDERBERGER
Silverhorn Investment Advisors Limited

Mr James SHIPTON
Securities and Futures Commission

Ms Connie SHUM
CASH Financial Services Group Limited

Ms Catherine SIU

LaSalle Investment Management Securities Hong Kong Limited

Ms TAM Yuen Wah
SinoPac Securities (Asia) Limited

Mr TSANG Ching Biu
Nomura International (Hong Kong) Limited

Ms Agnes TSO
Ernst & Young

Mr WONG Chank Wai
KGI Asia Limited

Mr James WONG
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Dr YIM Fung
Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited

Dr ZHAO Hongwei
Cinda International Holdings Limited

Mr ZHONG Xiaofeng
Amundi Hong Kong Limited
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Corporate Members are entitled to nominate 1 to 6 Corporate Nominees. See page 74 for details.
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OUR CORPORATE MEMBERS

EHHEss

Category A*
A* 48

BNP PARIBAS
The bank for a changing world

183 BE R
HAITONG

JPMorgan

Morgan Stanley

& BEARDRT

Category A
A%

=m CFSG

citi

SUN HUNG KAI FINANCIAL

HSBC <>

Private Bank

BNP Paribas
EEERELT

Haitong International Securities Group Limited

BREERESEERRAF

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
BERZREERERAF

J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited

Morgan Stanley Asia Limited
EREAFEMNERAF

The Bank of East Asia, Limited
RuERITERADE

CASH Financial Services Group Limited
RHESRREEEETRA T

Citigroup Global Markets Asia Limited
RERRSEMIUNERA A

Sun Hung Kai Financial Limited

HBETRERAH

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

— Private Banking

BERLBESRITAERDT — BARITER

BEBFRBAESE « —T-AFFH ﬁ



OUR CORPORATE MEMBERS
RPN HBEEs

Category B

B#H

Bank Julius Baer & Company Limited

Bank of Singapore Limited

Barclays Capital (Asia) Limited

BOCI Securities Limited

China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited

Cinda International Holdings Limited

Clifford Chance

CLSA Limited

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Daiwa Capital Markets Hong Kong Limited

DBS Vickers (Hong Kong) Limited

Deutsche Bank Group

FXCM Asia Limited

Guosen Securities (HK) Financial Holdings Company Limited
HSBC Broking Services (Asia) Limited

HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited
International Securities Consultancy Limited (The)
Invesco Hong Kong Limited

Nomura International (Hong Kong) Limited

Optiver Trading Hong Kong Limited

Phillip Securities (Hong Kong) Ltd

Rabobank International Hong Kong Branch

Schroder Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited
Societe Generale Bank and Trust, Hong Kong Branch
SPDB International Holdings Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
(Private Bank Division)

Sun Life Hong Kong Limited
VC Brokerage Limited

ﬂ Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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Category C

C#

ABN AMRO Bank N.V.

ABN AMRO Clearing Hong Kong Limited
Acetop Precious Metals Limited

AFE Solutions Ltd.

ALPS Advisory (HK) Limited

Amundi Hong Kong Limited

Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance Limited
Athena Wealth Management Ltd.

Baker & McKenzie

Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A., HK Branch
Bank J. Safra Sarasin Ltd

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd, Hong Kong Branch
— Training & Development Centre

Bank SinoPac Hong Kong Branch

Baring Asset Management (Asia) Limited

Bentley Capital Limited

BMO Global Asset Management (HK) Ltd
BOCI-Prudential Asset Management Limited

BSI Ltd, Hong Kong Branch

Cantor Fitzgerald (Hong Kong) Capital Markets Ltd.
CCB International Capital Limited

Charles Schwab, Hong Kong, Limited

Cheer Pearl Investment Limited

China International Capital Corporation (HK) Ltd
China Renaissance Securities (Hong Kong) Limited
China Rich Securities Limited

China Securities (International) Finance Holding
Company Limited

Chong Hing Commodities & Futures Limited
Chong Hing Securities Limited

Chow Sang Sang Securities Limited

AEETEARLIA
DEEMMRERATE

RATEREEEEERARAA
REMBEBAERIF
EEMEEERRAA
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OUR CORPORATE MEMBERS
RPN HBEEs

Category C
C#

CIMB Securities Limited
CITIC Capital Holdings Limited
CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited

CITIC Securities Brokerage (HK) Limited

CITIC Securities Corporate Finance (HK) Limited

CITIC Securities International Investment Management

(HK) Ltd.
Commerzbank AG, Hong Kong Branch
Convoy Asset Management Limited
Corporate Brokers Limited
Coutts & Co Ltd
Davis Polk & Wardwell
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Delta Asia Securities Limited
E.SUN Commercial Bank Ltd.
eprint Group Limited
Ernst & Young, Financial Services
Essence International Financial Holdings Limited
ETRADE Securities (Hong Kong) Limited
FCL Advisory Limited
GAM Hong Kong Limited
GF Holdings (Hong Kong) Corporation Limited
Goldride Securities Limited
Greenpro Inc
Guangdong Securities Limited
Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited

Guoyuan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited

Haitong International Wealth Management Limited

Hang Seng Investment Management Limited
Hang Seng Securities Limited

Hani Securities (HK) Limited

ﬁ Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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Category C
C#

Hantec Holdings Investment Limited

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education
Huatai Financial Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited
Hui Kai Securities Limited

I-Access Group Limited

ICBC International Capital Limited

Instinet Pacific Limited

JF Asset Management Limited

Jin Hung Securities Limited

JS Cresvale Securities International Limited
KGI Asia Limited

Kingsway Financial Services Group Limited

LaSalle Investment Management Securities Hong Kong Limited

LGT Bank AG

Link Asset Management Limited

Liquidnet Asia Limited

Luso International Banking Limited

Manulife Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited
Mirae Asset Global Investments (Hong Kong) Limited
MTR Corporation Limited

Newedge Group (Hong Kong Branch)

Noble Apex Advisors Limited

Noble Securities Company Limited

Nomura Asset Management Hong Kong Limited
Okasan International (Asia) Ltd.

ONC Lawyers

Partners Financial Holdings Limited

Ping An Securities Limited

Platinum Securities Company Limited

Prime Capital Management Company Limited

Principal Asset Management Company (Asia) Limited
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OUR CORPORATE MEMBERS
RPN HBEEs

Category C
C#

Quam Capital (Holdings) Limited

RAYS Capital Partners Limited

RHB OSK Securities Hong Kong Limited
Rongshi International Holding Co. Ltd.
Savills Realty Limited

Securities and Futures Commission

Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited, Securities Department

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Company Limited,

Hong Kong Branch
Shenwan Hongyuan Securities (H.K.) Limited
Shine Faith Consultants Limited
Silverhorn Investment Advisors Limited
SinoPac Securities (Asia) Limited
Solid King Securities Limited
South China Securities Ltd

Southwest Securities International Securities Limited

Standard Chartered Bank, Securities Services
State Street Bank And Trust Company

Sun International Securities Limited

Taiping Securities (HK) Co Ltd

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University,
School of Accounting and Finance

Toyo Securities Asia Limited

TPG-Axon Capital (HK), Limited

Tung Tai Securities Company Limited
Upbest Securities Company Limited
Value Partners Limited

Venhouse Financial Planning Limited
Winsome Stock Company Limited

Wocom Holdings Limited

World-Wide Investment Company Limited

Zhongtai Financial International Limited

g Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR
FEKRER

22-24/5/2014

Study Mission to Shanghai
FEERE

Shortly before the announcement of the
Stock Connect, the HKSI Institute led a
high-level business delegation of senior
practitioners to Shanghai. The delegation
visited regulators and government
institutions, stock and futures exchanges,
and industry organisations.

ERMEEBBZAITA  BaRERAERNK

AKE] ¥ ABARMEEEREIG LS BT
LRI & (R E HPI LB - RERBER S
LR RN B - DA RATEEAS, -

25/9/2014

Autumn Dinner

MEBRE

The HKSI Institute conferred its Honorary
Fellowship upon Dr Eddy Fong at its
Autumn Dinner on 25 September with
Prof KC Chan, Secretary for Financial

Services and the Treasury as the Guest of
Honour.

BENOABARROMNFTHREPRRKE
ERGEERTHERL  URFEMKE=R
BLEBBRERZBHEEELIERS -

9/12/2014

Annual General Meeting
EPN

Six members, Mr Joseph Chan, Mr Paul
Day, Prof Vincent Kwan, Mr Victor Lee,
Mr Louis Mak and Ms Katherine Ng, were
elected or appointed as Board Directors
of the HKSI Institute, and Mr Craig Lindsay
was re-elected as Chairman.

NEEE  RERAELE  Paul Dayst - B
mA R FRMAAE  RABLEAERMAER
Mt BENEZEIRBGESR  MMHE
HALRBERAEE -

ﬂ Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015



22/1/2015

Business Ethics Forum

[EEIZSSE b

The HKSI Institute’s signature event featured 20 speakers and
panelists, and attracted 150 delegates from the industry of which

mostly were senior level and C-suite executives. See Feature Story
— Business Ethics Forum 2015 from pages 91 to 96.

“tREERER MK E2ESENEREE - WK 150 R K AR

RAEE  EPZHASARECEERETRAR - F2HENE%E
B ERBEREG — 2015 F R E R TamiE o

Q] soreecamige s

WOICOME in e inagurst imaue o1 5.1 trmm the HKSI Institute

181 a3 e im0

Jfierpicin ol igfep Lot

22/1/2015

o the Chairman of

30/1/2015

Launch of Certified Private Wealth Professional
Module 1 Examination

L ESAMLAMEEEME T —ZH

The CPWP Module 1 Examination was launched under the ECF for
PWM practitioners initiated by the HKMA. Training programmes
and study manuals for the preparation of the Examination were
launched and published in October and November 2014
respectively.

RESCEREBRNLAMEERENEE BT EE LB MR
AT ETHEME T —ERAEAEL - AEATEHZEAMRNIEE
BIIRELREFMEDAIN2014F 10 A K11 AL -

i Publication of the Inaugural Issue of S.I.

E sEEmm——me S | I FUSE AR

We are excited to publish the inaugural issue of S.I., a quarterly
technical newsletter for Members, on the same day of the BEF. Mr
Carlson Tong, Chairman of the SFC, presented his congratulatory
message to mark the occasion.

BAREERTHERITER - HRT R AMETS.LHEITIR - F
ESIRERNELRFILRSER - UbHE=E -

The first CPWP Module 1 Paper 1 Examination
“Financial Instruments’ will be held on
30 January 2015,

for dotalls

Plense click hare

Prepaning for the axnmination:
* Stuey Manund: currently availatie for sale at MKS! institute
- Rofrashor Programme: 22 Cciobar 2014 - 23 January 2015

(Please refer to "Education” for details of the Refresher Programme)



BUSINESS REVIEW — FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
EEOE — MERE

Revenue WA

The HKSI Institute’s operations are mainly funded by fee EengETERMRES  FEIIRINEE
income received from examinations candidates, participants of BWENERWAUREBRENES - P
education and outreach programmes, and membership dues. HZE2015F3ANBAUETREE  #EH
In the financial year ended 31 March 2015, income earned from FTERERIR AN AP EENWAKIR
examinations remained our most significant source of revenue, 1 B U A K 55% (2014 4F = 55%) © #E 5 3I
representing 55% (2014: 55%) of total revenue. Income earned RANBEHREHRARSEE D RIH4E
from education and outreach programmes, and membership IR AR 26% K 9% (2014 FF + 28% 2 11%) °
fees represented 26% and 9% (2014: 28% and 11%) of total W AZBE A B EE A M 3% 4 8 AP o

revenue. There was no significant change in revenue mix during
the financial year.

Analysis of Revenue from Operations

EERAD
Analysis of 2015 Revenue Analysis of 2014 Revenue
2015 FWRADHT 2014 FWRADHT

Examination income & &I A

Income from education and outreach programmes 553l & S SE B UL A

Membership dues & &

Others HAib

2015 2014

Revenue A (HK$'000) (HK$'000)
Examination income EZRWA 26,535 20,849
Income from education and outreach programmes B3| R ANESE B IR A 12,409 10,466
Membership dues = 4,122 4,008
Others HAh 4,913 2,238
Total HET 47,979 37,561

g Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015



Total revenue for the year increased by $10.4 million or 28%.
Increased enrolment for the LE examinations resulted in income
earned from examinations increasing by $5.7 million or 27%
from $20.8 million to $26.5 million. Income from education and
outreach programmes increased by $1.9 million or 18% from
$10.5 million to $12.4 million. This was mainly due to the launch
of a number of new education and development initiatives and
increased demand for our regulatory and compliance training
programmes.

Operating Expenses

Staff costs, lease charges and premises costs were the
most significant costs of our operations, representing 73%
(2014: 74%) of the total operating expenses. Direct costs for
operations, including development costs for examination
questions, study manuals, education and development
programmes, fees for trainers and guest speakers, out-of-
pocket expenses of events, etc, represented 12% (2014: 12%)
of our total operating expenses.

Analysis of Operating Expenses
RERDM

Analysis of 2015 Expenses
2015 FRX DM

[ Staff costs & TR

RNEF LW AL IN1,0408 8T - 18I A
28% o EERBE ARG FEHIK
AH2,0808 8 g £ 5708 % 7T (B127%)
26508 B 7 o 3| R INEE B UL A TR
1,050 8B TR 1908 E T (B118%) &
124088 - X BERANESHLZE
FHFHEFIEE RETRAREIIRE
B EFHFTER

RERX

BTRA  HEBA&EKAERZ M
EEMNREARAN  HREEATMT3%
(201445 : 74%) - € EWEEZEXN T (B
EZAABBEBEFM BESIRENR
BIRA A - BRI EEREER  E8NE
NBRSE)HBEERITM12%(20144F ¢
12%) °

Analysis of 2014 Expenses
2014 R DM

Lease charges and premises expenses & & A K EATH X

[! Direct costs for operations &% #) B # Ak 2
[l Others EAth

ESESRRARE « —F-DEEH ﬂ



BUSINESS REVIEW — FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
EREOE —MEBERE

Operating expenses RERX

Staff costs BT

Lease charges and premises expenses HEERRERAX
Direct costs for operations BB EENA
Others HAh

Total HEt

Total operating expenses for the year increased by $5.3 million
or 13%. Due to the recruitment of additional experienced staff
members to support the HKSI Institute’s growth and initiatives,
staff costs increased by $3.4 million or 15% from $22.7 million
to $26.1 million. Direct operational costs increased by $0.8
million or 17% from $4.6 million to $5.3 million. This was mainly
due to the additional costs incurred for our signature event,
BEF 2015, during the year.

ﬂ Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015

2015 2014
(HK$'000) (HK$'000)
26,102 22,653
6,712 6,680
5,347 4,559
6,663 5,636
44,824 39,528

NEEEKEFR L IMNS30E BT 0 BIg
B13% - ARIEREZHEH AB Y F
BeEREEE  BIKAH22708H
JCIEIN3408 78 T (B115%) E2,6108 8 T ©
BEEEERARIOESITIEINS0ES T
(BI17%) 25308 B L EEZERANA
FEBPEHTEY — 2015FmERTH
BEFEINK A ©






BUSINESS REVIEW — CURRICULUM AND EXAMINATIONS

EHEE —RERZH

The Curriculum & Examinations Department (CED), under
the guidance and direction provided by the Examinations
Committee, primarily develops and maintains quality
examinations for practitioners engaged in regulated activities
to meet licensing requirements. We also offer professional
qualifications for candidates to advance their careers in the
financial services industry.

Licensing Examinations for Securities and Futures
Intermediaries (LE) are the most significant examination
offerings of the HKSI Institute. LE examinations are regularly
held in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Taiwan. In addition,
we also offer other local and international examinations related
to the financial services industry.

Licensing Examinations for Securities and
Futures Intermediaries in Hong Kong

For the financial year ended 31 March 2015, 867 (2014: 823)
LE sessions were conducted in Hong Kong for a total number
of 28,521 (2014: 24,817) enrolments from 13,332 (2014: 12,281)
candidates. This represents an increase of approximately 14.9%
by number of enrolments and 8.6% by number of candidates
respectively compared with the previous financial year.

LE Enrolments and Candidates*

At the HKSI Institute, we strive to provide efficient and
environment-friendly facilities for our candidates to enrol in
and take our examinations. We launched an “e-enrolment”
system in 2005, enabling candidates to enrol in examinations
electronically via our website. For the financial year ended
31 March 2015, over 90% of the enrolments were made via
the e-enrolment system. In December 2008, we further rolled
out our first Computer-based Examination (CBE) session in a
designated CBE Examination Centre. Since then, CBE gradually
replaced Paper-based Examinations (PBE) as candidates’ major
mode of taking examinations. For the financial year ended 31
March 2015, 861 (2014: 812) LE CBE sessions and 6 (2014: 11)
LE Paper-based Examination (PBE) session were conducted
respectively. In terms of enrolment number, 28,135 out of
28,521 enrolments or 98.6% were taken in CBE mode. We
continue to hold a minimum number of PBE sessions to meet
specific needs and circumstances of candidates as well as to
ensure contingency measures in place.

ﬂ Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
No. of Enrolments (CBE)
ERGER ZHBE AL - - - 550 13,373 33,304 35,993 25,086 24,180 28,135

No. of Enrolments (PBE)
SoER ESHRE AL I42,752 46,095 69,102 48,413 18,068 3,659 1,486 361 637 386

No. of Candidates 2
OO 5% L 17,974 20,055 27,709 21,394 14,056 16,292 16,582 11,991 12,281 13,332

*  Enrolment figures includes multiple enrolments by the same individuals during * BEANRBFRER-—ZEESWRFEAN
each financial year. Data for LE offered in the Mainland China and Taiwan not ZIRBE - WRPHUFAIABEPEABEE
included. BRI EREANER -

On 17 August 2015, the HKSI Institute moved from the 24th 201558 H17H » B &K EZ 024

Floor at the Wing On Centre to the new office on the 5th Floor. BEBESENFMER o tARBIFASE

The move brings together the training/office area and the CBE I MABRRERS—EENEKEE

Examination Centre which was previously on a separate floor, BAZRFPLHAR—EE EZLEAE

allowing our candidates access to our other services including FHRESRMANEIRINE TS H AR

education and outreach events in a more convenient way. 7 o

P

CBE Examination Centre at the new office

RFMHAENEEEEXZ AP

<

k=113
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EEESRINASE « ~F HFEH ﬂ



BUSINESS REVIEW — CURRICULUM AND EXAMINATIONS

EBZOE —RERETH

Of the LE candidates in Hong Kong, over 70% are university
graduates or above. Among those who declared their business
sectors, 82% were from the financial services sector.

ERBBTMNEREAELLS  B170% &
REBFULREAL - EHRHEITEEH
ALTEF  RESBITEENLIIR2%

Profile of LE Candidates (Hong Kong)
ZLEERDH (FE)

Education Level #HBERE

By Business Sector 17%

Financial

University services

or above SRR
KRB E

Non-financial

Below services

University kS FBE
REBUT

Student

B4

LE in Mainland China and Taiwan

In addition to the LE held in Hong Kong, we continue to hold
LE in Mainland China (Paper 1) and Taiwan (Papers 1, 7, 8, 9
and 12) via the cooperation with the Securities Association
of China (SAC) and the Securities and Futures Institute (SFI)
respectively. During the year ended 31 March 2015, the
number of enrolments for LE held in Mainland China increased
by about 190% from 854 in 2014 to 2,476, whereas the number
of enrolment for LE held in Taiwan remained steady at 134 (2014:
141).

Recently, the HKSI Institute initiates a number of measures with
the SAC and SFl to facilitate Mainland and Taiwan professionals
to take the LE.

a Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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In order to meet the demand of candidates in other major
cities in Mainland, Beijing was added as a third examination
location since November 2014 in addition to Shanghai and
Shenzhen. In May 2015, two more locations, namely Xi‘an and
Wuhan, were also added. To meet candidates’ demand for the
relevant examinations of securities, asset management and
sponsor regulated activities, LE Papers 2, 6 and 16 were first
launched in Mainland in July 2015. Meanwhile, the frequency of
examinations was also increased to three times in 2015 for the
LE in Mainland.

In order to meet the demand in Taiwan, in addition to Papers 1,
7,8, 9 and 12, Paper 2 was introduced in Taiwan in September
2015.

LE Enrolment and Pass Rate

Same as previous financial year, LE Papers 1, 7 and 8 recorded
the highest enrolment in Hong Kong and represented almost
80% (2014: 78%) of total enrolments. The pass rate for all
papers ranged from 46% to 85% (2014: 35% to 84%) with the
average at 67% (2014: 69%) compared to 44% (2014: 62%) in
the Mainland and 62% (2014: 75%) in Taiwan.

Analysis of LE Enrolments

ERZERBERRIMN

Distribution of LE Paper Enrolments (Hong Kong)
EREAEERE 2D M (FHE)

Paper 1

15,086

ABRRAMEMESRTAEET R 4t
TE 20146 11 AR Ak 8 RORIIIN
S =AZ% - A2015%5A8 » MK
EEMES AL RRE - BRmEZE
HES BEETERRBEAZREETEHHE
B ABER - R2015F7 A & R ER
HHERZAE2 6816 A NinE
BERNEFHNEBR 2015 FEE=Z )X -

Bes— £t N\ Akt AR
2015F9AEREHHESE - LRERE

BREAREARLEGRE
HBAFRPAER  BERERSE— - RN
EEBHEERME AL HHEREA
RH) HT80% (20144 1 78%)  FT B & 5
B A& K A F46% % 85% (20144 : 35%
£84%) - FHE K B67T% (20145 -
69%) * MmN R B ERFHEEEAE44%
(20144 : 62%) R 62% (20144F : 75%) °

Paper 7
Bt

3,933

Paper 8
BN
3,686

Other Papers
HipZ s

5,816
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Enrolment and pass rate analysis of LE Papers (Hong Kong, Mainland China and Taiwan)

EREABRAEHNBEARREGKEEIN (FE - FEAMESE)

#

Hong Kong
Paper 1

Fundamentals of Securities and

Futures Regulation

Paper 2
Regulation of Securities

Paper 3
Regulation of Derivatives

Paper 4

Regulation of Credit Rating Services

Paper 5

Regulation of Corporate Finance

Paper 6

Regulation of Asset Management

Paper 7
Financial Markets

Paper 8
Securities

Paper 9
Derivatives

Paper 10
Credit Rating Services

Paper 11
Corporate Finance

Paper 12
Asset Management

Paper 15
Sponsors (Principals)

Paper 16
Sponsors (Representatives)

Total/Overall Average

Mainland & Taiwan
LE in Mainland
(Paper 1)

LE in Taiwan
(Paper 1,7,8,9and 12)

No. of Enrolments*  Average Pass Rate

|EANR FHEKER
Year £

2013-14 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15
&8
H— 12,882 15,086 59% 58%
ERESH R
HERHI
E= 1,209 1,481 71% 73%
FHRO
H= 295 313 80% 86%
PTHETEBEN
& 32 40 83% 70%
EEFHRRIE RG]
ol 238 273 79% 72%
BBV E B0
EC VAN 755 949 78% 78%
BESERG
H+ 3,370 3,933 66% 61%
SRS
EETAN 3,062 3,686 62% 59%
o
B 789 719 45% 46%
PTAETEA
&+ 41 54 35% 50%
BB RRTE
H+— 207 210 80% 71%
BEmE
i g 481 638 70% 68%
BEER
Ft+Ha 50 39 68% 64%
REBEA(EEASR)
R AN 1,406 1,100 84% 72%
REA(KEK)
BB EBTIE 24,817 28,521 69% 67%
B it BE A
R BB ERE 854 2,476 62% 44%
(1)
BEFEERER 141 134 75% 62%

(351,7,8,9%12)

Includes multiple enrolments by the same individuals between April 2014 and March 2015.
BIER—EEE2014F4 AZ2015F3ANNZRME
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LE Study Manuals

We review and update the existing LE study manuals
periodically to reflect relevant updates, including new/
revised rules and regulations, market practices and industry
development in a timely manner. This is part of our continued
effort to uphold the high quality of our examinations.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, a number of relevant
study manuals have been updated to incorporate the
latest regulatory and market updates, for example, the new
Companies Ordinance requirements. In addition, the second
edition of LE Paper 5 (Regulations of Corporate Finance) study
manual was published in December 2014 which reflected up-
to-date development of corporate finance regulations and
practice. Our question bank has also been reviewed and
updated to align with these new and revised contents.

In June 2015, we have incorporated the relevant new
regulations and knowledge regarding “Stock Connect” into
a number of relevant study manuals. On the other hand, with
the rapid market and regulatory development on the asset
management industry, including the Hong Kong-Mainland
mutual recognition of funds scheme implemented in July 2015,
we recently completed a comprehensive review of LE Paper 6
(Regulations of Asset Management) study manual. The updated
manual was published in mid September 2015.

Certified Private Wealth Professional
Qualification

To support the roll-out of the ECF for PWM practitioners in
Hong Kong, the Paper 1 and Paper 2 examinations for “Module
1 — Technical, Industry and Product Knowledge"” of the CPWP
were launched in January and June 2015 respectively. The
corresponding study manuals for Paper 1 and 2 were published
in November 2014 and April 2015 respectively. We are going to
run a total of 9 sittings for the CPWP Papers in 2015.

Having this effort, we would like to express our heartfelt
thanks to the PWM Steering Committee for providing strategic
direction and recommendation to the HKSI Institute to build
and expand our wealth management offerings.

BREHnE i

BPERERLEHRRANEREARE
F - AR RRFTET, BT AR
B BB RITEEREAEBE - E
ERMSFERFSEREAMES NN

—#5 -

HE20F3ANABLEEE ZHHEEB
BEFMEEHUHARNEE RTIHH
BE - PILnFT 2 BHER BB E o BN - B
ERABSR(KERESRDN) 2 BEFME=
FRE R 2014F 12 AR - REL T #iBRE
ROIRENNSEIER - RAOWABED
KEBREMUAFEZEN REEETRN

N
o
“=

201566 A HMEZHHAERE FM
BEABEEEE] WIEBIRG KA -
B—rE BEEETETEEDTERE
EHHERIRERER (BIER2015F7 BETT
MEBENESERTE)  BRAKAED
EREREREN(BEEETEMAN)ABEF
MH2HETE - ZEEFHABEFHRER
2015F 9 A A HhR

AMAAMEEEMERS

ABYBEEBHELNLAMEEREREEN
EBLFERENEE 225 5R2015F 1
A R6 A HAMALAN S ERA BEr1—
EEREE TEREMAE] NSRS
—EH B —ME AR E FMEIDRIR
2014F 11 AFI20154 4 A Hhk - & AF9ETE
E2015FRTAHIGFMALATEER
REH -

BAREROBRHAMAMEEEEEERE
TP RERBESNER  BULE
EREMNMEEERT



BUSINESS REVIEW — CURRICULUM AND EXAMINATIONS
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Members of PWM Steering Committee
Ms Anna WONG (Chairman)

Ms Yvonne HSIN

Prof Vincent KWAN

Prof SF WONG

Mr Ben KWOK (Secretary)

Other Examinations

In order to support the market development of Mainland China,
the frequency of PRC Securities Regulations Examination held
in Hong Kong was increased to two times in 2015. In addition,
the Certified International Investment Analyst (CIIA) Final
Examination is available in Simplified Chinese commencing
September 2015. We believe that CIIA candidates in Hong
Kong perform at their best in examinations when they can use
their mother tongue.

Examinations Offered by the HKSI Institute

Local Examinations

The Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society Qualification
Examination

Certified Private Wealth Professional (Module 1)
The HKSI Institute Professional Diploma in Financial Markets

Licensing Examination for Securities and Futures
Intermediaries

MPF Intermediaries Examination

Regional and International Examinations

Advanced Certificate in International and Domestic
Wealth Planning

Certified International Investment Analyst
— Final Examination

Certified International Wealth Manager
— Final Examination

PRC Securities Regulations Examination

a Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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Development and Quality Assurance

Quality and integrity of our study manuals and examination
questions are of utmost importance to the brand and
reputation of the HKSI Institute, as well as to the candidates.
Our quality assurance policies and internal control procedures
include, but are not limited to, the following:

° We report to the Examinations Committee, Executive
Committee and the Board on work progress and any
issues on a regular basis.

e We proactively engage and consult the Examinations
Committee on quality and integrity issues as appropriate.

e We engage reputable external consultants with sufficient
and relevant academic, regulatory and/or industry
practical experience to develop study manuals and
examination questions. The qualifications and experience
of external consultants must be evaluated and approved
by the Examinations Committee before engagement.

e We update the study manuals and examinations questions
on a regular basis to reflect any major changes in rules
and regulations, market practice and other technical
knowledge.

e We go through a robust review process by independent
subject matter experts, as well as regulators where
necessary, before any new or updated study manuals and
examination questions are released.

e We review the appropriateness of each question
contained in the examination papers before the
examinations take place on an ongoing basis.

° We perform post-examination evaluation on examination
papers and pass rates to detect any quality and integrity
issues.

o We appoint external assessors to review each of our LE
Examination Papers on an annual basis.

e We adopt vigorous physical access control and
information security policies and procedures to protect
our examination question banks from unauthorised access
or use.

° We strictly enforce our examinations rules in our
examination centres.

w3 S E RIRAE

BFEEFMEEAAENERR ALY
BemENBERREE  BELTEN
It o FRAPIEYE AR FE R SR B A BB 12 I AR e
BREREFRRIAT

s HBMEMRERAZES #TEES®
REZRWE TIEEE REIRHEE

o RMEEMHME R AIEMBEERR
WEALZEE -

s BMRBABRENEREMN EE
R/ SHITEER LR S E BRI
FERREEE T EEAFE - S
REMEZRENAKEAREGTE
HERE & -

o RMEMENLEFMEEARNE -
AR BR AR e SR - 518 5] K E
BT AN Y (] E R Ep o

o HMERMEMIFFINEEITRET
fhEAAENBBE L TEERN
EEEZERF UEROERRBBE

EREHEE -
.« RMEERBTHELAST TR

REEREE
o HMHHSRABIETHLFMEN
WAEAERRRIERE -

s HEMRZMIAFERESFELEENE
REAAS -

o BPRMEMPIZENREMLER
REIE P ARIE S S B B TR
RERERER -

o BMAEZAFLBERBITEARA



BUSINESS REVIEW — CURRICULUM AND EXAMINATIONS

EBZOE —RERETH
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Special thanks are also due to reviewers of LE study manuals
and questions for inclusion in our question bank as well as
advisors and contributors to various professional examinations
offered by the HKSI Institute. They provided significant and
invaluable input in developing and maintaining the quality of
our study manuals and examinations.
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Examination Study Manuals
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FEATURE STORY — S.I. — STANDARDS & INSIGHTS
HERE — S| — FEERAR

The HKSI Institute is proud to launch the inaugural issue of its
quarterly technical newsletter, S.I., in January 2015 with great
success. We are pleased that S.I. is highly welcomed by
members and practitioners.

SHMN2015F 1 AL ORMHAETSL I TIRERGE AKX
mmé% WRAES|.ZHEEREAALSEELD

Not only does “S.I." echo the acronym of the HKSI Institute, it
also stands for “Standards and Insights”. “Standards” refers to

: FOSTERING
our vision to champion professional standards of excellence in z e INNOVATION AND
Hong Kong financial services industry; and “Insights” aims at CUHPE*TIII"I?\E'EEE‘IIJEE

keeping members abreast of up-to-date trends, development
and regulatory matters that affect the industry.

[SI1]MENEESREMGHE - TEE [FEENR ] - [1F8] 5
BAREABTBSRRFEREFRKFAERESFRAIOES - M 10
RIAERMEERSEREZEXRANSNBY  EREAES
E o

The editorial team, comprising experienced staff of the
Curriculum & Examinations Department of the HKSI Institute,
closely monitors the most current development and technical/
regulatory issues in the marketplace and selects those
interesting and important ones to discuss in each issue of S.I.
Its contents cover a wide range of topics such as:

HE& AE’J?%E&%*WB%{FE&E\%ﬂﬁzﬁ’ﬂﬁiﬂd\ﬂﬂﬁ B EMSIR
REFEBA,REEE - ARPHERFIREENORE - NS
HIS.I Pl - AR /T%f/z fign :

e  practical experience sharing through interviews with our
leaders;

REIEF D ZFESRMHERLR

o major market developments and hot topics;

MEERHRIAMGEE

o Regulatory Insights Series — an analysis of recent
regulatory or enforcement issues;

BRINMAES — oSO BB A PEZRA

o important regulatory changes and development; and

EZREEIARER Rk

e  The HKSI Institute’s events and programmes that
champion excellence and professional standards

BeREAEENBEEKTMRNESRIAR
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An advisory board was set up to advise the editorial team on
regulatory and industry matters. The advisory board comprises
veteran professionals including Mr Robert Bunker (Consultant,
Bentley Reid & Co. Ltd), Dr Richard Chow (Consultant, HKMA
and former Director, Enforcement Division of the SFC) and Prof
Vincent Kwan (Board Director, the HKSI Institute and Honorary
Professor, The University of Hong Kong). The advisory board
plays a key role in providing quality assurance on S.I. from
regulatory, industry and academic perspectives. We are
grateful for their valuable contribution and advice to the
editorial team.

BeRUAALZES  BERNGENEAREEFERAERITESZED
BER -HBALZECHEREEATHERK KEBEZRELELSE
(Bentley Reid & Co. Ltd ) ~ AHEF L (2 EREMMNEES

THRRATAEE) LR AR (B ER REBRBEEHE) -
HAEEERSILIAE  TELBMER FAARHENERRE

We have published 3 issues of S.I. since January 2015 and
interviewed 4 Board Directors, namely Mr Craig Lindsay, Mr
Louis Mak, Mr Colin Shaftesley and Ms Anna Wong who shared
with us their invaluable thoughts and experience. We are
deeply indebted to their contribution to make S.I. a great
success. We also thank Mr Carlson Tong, the Chairman of the
SFC, for his kindness and meaningful words in his
congratulatory message in the inaugural issue to mark the
occasion.

BB 2015F 1 BAREEITT3HS > YA T4RR/RRRDF
BEERMNERNES  AIMEHEL  TRIELRLE  APFELE
MEZHZLE Z2eHOMASILEBERKIMELNER - R
KRB - RAITRHEE ST EERKE LRSI AITRBUAEK

REREE

Advisory Board BHZE®

Mr Robert BUNKER 5K 4454 4
Dr Richard CHOW FE## =18+
Prof Vincent KWAN &8 & 77 203%

Editorial Team #REE/)N 4

Mr Ben KWOK B KB 5E £
(Chief Editor #2#4m%8)

Ms Katherine CHAN PRZE & %2 &
Mr Hugo CHU K& E R4

Mr Horace LEE ZF2%5 %t 4

Ms Joan NG REHF L+

Mr Sunny SIU @B E T 4E

Mr Frankie TANG BB#856 %t 4

Topics Covered JEE X7
Stock Connect

B

Business Ethics

EBEIE R

Volatility Control Mechanism
R B 38 1 il

Weighted Voting Rights
NEREERE

Certified Private Wealth Professional

FEMALA B = E IR AD

Unlicensed Activities
BRETXRERD

Market Misconduct
MISKETR

Anti-Money Laundering

i

Regulatory and Market Outlook/
Update
RERMSRE&HER



BUSINESS REVIEW — EDUCATION AND DEVELOPMENT

RGEE — FEE

The HKSI Institute continued to play a key role in driving
and enhancing the professional development of the industry
practitioners through a wide range of continuous development
training courses. Over 14,600 (2014: 15,600) enrolments were
recorded for our 911 (2014: 768) training classes during the
financial year.

In late August 2014, the Education & Development Department
(EDD) conducted a Training Needs Analysis (TNA) survey
to better understand the training needs of the industry
practitioners. In addition, EDD carefully studied and analysed
various industries’ human resources reviews and reports (e.g.
the findings of the Financial Services Development Council's
(FSDC) Report on "Developing Hong Kong's Human Capital in
Financial Services"”), the feedback gained from our members
and industry practitioners as well as the initiatives proposed or
driven by the regulators. Putting the findings into actions, we
have expanded our course and services offerings throughout
the year as follows:

Enhanced our regulatory and compliance series by
introducing new regulatory and compliance update
courses

o Developed and launched the CPWP Module 1 Refresher
Course for PIWM practitioners

o Launched new programmes which include:

— The Executive Development Programme which
was redesigned to include those topics that were
relevant to the senior executives, experienced
practitioners and board of directors

—  The Preparatory Course for LE Papers 1,7 and 9

o Introduced learning consultancy services to our corporate
members and in-house training clients in order to provide
more effective and tailored learning solutions or develop
appropriate learning plans for their consideration

o Enhanced and expanded our eCourse platform and
catalogue to promote effective just-in-time learning and
provide an alternative learning platform that fits into each
individual member’s learning preferences

ﬁ Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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To enable us to deliver high quality, effective and efficient
learning solutions to our learners, members and in-house
training clients, we have built a dedicated team, which
comprises experienced Financial Services and Learning and
Development professionals, in 2014. The team works closely
with the Education and Development Committee (EDC), our
trainers, regulators, industry’s professional bodies and in-house
training clients to:

o identify the potential training requirements

o provide advice on and help develop learning strategies
and learning solutions

o provide learning consultancy services to in-house training

e design and develop the training courses

In addition, we continued to enhance our internal quality
assurance mechanism with reference to the industry best
practices and the quality assurance requirements set by the
regulators and/or accreditation bodies to ensure our courses
are properly designed and developed and our trainers are
experienced and competent to deliver the training courses.
We proactively seek feedback from participants on all of our
courses which is part of our quality monitoring process and
over 97% of our training classes have achieved our required
overall rating endorsed by the EDC.

Number of Participants by Course Content
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Having these efforts, we are grateful for the valuable
contribution and support from the EDC members.
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FEATURE STORY — NEW TRAINING INITIATIVES

SERE — FBIER

Nurturing Talents in the Wealth and Asset
Management Sector

Wealth and asset management is a fast-growing sector within
the financial services industry especially in the last few years.
According to the SFC’s Fund Management Activities Survey
2014', Hong Kong's combined fund management business?
sustained a year-on-year growth of 11% to achieve a record
high of $17,682 billion at the end of 2014. The total number
of staff engaged in the combined fund management business
increased by 24% between 2009 and 2014.

With the fast economic growth and wealth creation in Asia, as
well as continued financial market liberalisation in the Mainland,
there are various initiatives proposed or implemented by the
industry, government and regulators to sharpen Hong Kong's
competitive edge as a premier international asset and wealth
management centre and to develop Hong Kong into a full-
service asset management hub. However various studies,
surveys and industry feedback indicated that there is an acute
need to attract young talents, develop quality personnel and
enhance the professional competence of practitioners to meet
the growing needs of the sector. Enhancing talent training is
crucial for the further development of the sector.

In June 2014, the ECF for PWM practitioners in Hong Kong
was launched, which sets out the enhanced standards of core
competence and ongoing professional development of PWM
practitioners who undertake customer-facing roles. The HKSI
Institute being the initial examination and training provider of
the CPWP Module 1 Examination, which covers the technical,
industry and product knowledge related to PWM, launched
both the training programme and examination in late 2014
and early 2015 respectively. Up to 31 August 2015, over 620
practitioners have enrolled in the training programme and/or
the Module 1 examination since they were launched.

BEEVEREEETEAIAL
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! The SFC's Fund Management Activities Survey 2014 was published in July
2015.

Combined fund management business comprises asset management, fund
advisory business, other private banking business and SFC-authorized real

estate investment trusts (REITs) management business.
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In addition, a report released by the FSDC indicates that many
graduates lack the understanding of the nature of most middle
and back office jobs within the asset and wealth management
space. In particular, it is difficult to attract talent to join the
more technical areas (e.g. risk management, compliance and
operations), where there is a key staff shortage. Given intense
staff poaching among firms and shortage of training resources
such as experienced trainers, it is very costly for employers
to invest in diversified and quality in-house training and
development programmes, or to groom fresh graduates.

Taking into account the views of the industry, the Financial
Secretary in his 2015-16 Budget speech proposed to launch
the Pilot Programme to further enhance talent training for the
insurance sector and the asset and wealth management sector.
Approximately half of the $100 million fund was allocated
to implement various initiatives, including public education
programmes, internship programme and financial incentive
schemes for professional training, to enhance talent promotion
and training under the asset and wealth management sector.
The HKSI Institute is proposed to be the implementation agent
of the Pilot Programme for the asset and wealth management
sector given its experiences and understanding of the training
needs of industry practitioners and an extensive network with
the industry and other training and tertiary institutions. We are
gearing up the preparation work together with relevant parties
with the aim of rolling out the various initiatives under the Pilot
Programme in early 2016.

The HKSI Institute is well-positioned on nurturing talents for
the wealth and asset management sector through variety of our

offerings.

DR ARREBURERBE AV ELEEERFIBEEASL

ZI - RESBEROBEHEL - TLEX
AHEBEENRVEEERAFNANKEE D E
FEHHBFIBUMNERBERIRBETRE - L
HE REeBARMEMRZEHE T
BEPINERER ARREE)EH
WEIAT - ARZ AR EHEEBRAT I
MEEBE - MEERBOEENINERE
ROBEEFEMNHESHORE  HEZT
mEE A EIFIIRE - HHIBEEEE
£ BBENBBRAA

EERINEAMER - MHAIRIRRK2015%
016 B FREE RGP ER - BUTE
BEVEBTHEIT - BAAM=-FHNEE
g UE—PINARRBNEETEERR
BIBAS I - EF A —FMHE &
EEREARKE BB RBEHFIIEE
BEREEY  UINAEERTEEER
BIEAA BRIBE R - 2EEEBINEL
BRENEENEINTRKESESRE T -
WEHER R HAMIEIFNE LR B g RS
Bizm#s  RAnERREEEENTE
EIRAR LG EIMRIERE - RPIER
EBEFEEF INREHTIE - EHER216
FUHELEEETE THSEER -




BUSINESS REVIEW — MEMBERSHIP

EHOE — 8%

One of the HKSI Institute’s primary roles is to develop a
membership community for practitioners of like mind to
promote professional standards by setting examples for
the industry. Our membership provides a unique platform
for professional exchanges and networking as we cover all
practitioners across the whole financial services industry.

Individual Membership: New Structure and
Progression Path

The current membership structure was established upon
amendments approved at the EGM on 23 September 2014.
Amongst the amendments, the new class of Senior Fellowship
was created to recognise Fellow Members who have made
significant contribution to the development of the HKSI
Institute and the financial services industry and enable qualified
Ordinary Members to apply for progression to Fellowship.
Also, full-time post-secondary student applicants to the HKSI
Institute Membership subsequent to the EGM will be given
Student Membership instead of Affiliate Membership which is
no longer offered.

Honorary Fellow
(FHKSI (Hon))
.

KK

X to the financial community
REEIR

Senior Fellow ¢ Fellow Members who have made significant

¢ Individuals who have made significant contribution

BURBHE MTREANREARS
8 R ASRTEM IR 28RN
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REGREEBE2014F9 A 238 BITHR
RIRESHEEFT ML - ] BIRIERAE
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RERZERBEMREZNEREER  UEA
ERGEESGERGHENRE - 1IN &
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EELEHBELEE B ML IE /AT T EH
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(SFHKSI)
HHEREER

Ordinary Member .
(MHKSI)
o=

B =

Associate Member .
(AHKSI)
BElegs

contribution to the development of the Institute and
the industry through their association with the Institute

Ordinary Members fulfilling the following requirements
— Veteran Route (10-year MHKSI + 15-year industry exp)
— Qualification Route (2-year MHKSI + 10-year

industry exp + HKSI recognised qualification)
— Contribution Route (2-year MHKSI + 10-year

industry exp + contribution to HKSI or industry)

Individuals who hold recognised academic or
professional qualification with at least 3 years’
relevant industry experience

Individuals who hold recognised academic or
industry qualification with less than 3 years'
relevant industry experience

Full-time post-secondary students
Can progress to AHKSI or MHKSI

ﬂ Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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Profile of Individual Members

As of 31 March 2015, there were 2,189 Individual Members,
including 33 Corporate Nominees.

By Membership Category
SRS

Brokerage

Honorary
Fellows/
Senior Fellows
gEEFRER
HEuEFrE8

Fellows

'REE

Ordinary
Members

g8

Associate
Members/
Student
Members

El=-V4 Students/

2488

B4 CHith

Corporate Membership

The HKSI Institute Corporate Membership is designed for
financial institutions, professional firms and other corporations.
Corporate Membership adds to the strength of the HKSI
Institute as a leading professional body representing the
industry’s interests. Corporate Members are entitled to
nominate 1 to 6 Corporate Nominees, depending on the
membership categories they belong to, to represent their firms
and participate in the HKSI Institute’s programmes.

Corporate Membership Number of

Categories Corporate Nominee(s)
Category A* 6
Category A 4
Category B 2
Category C 1

Investment
Consultancy
RERER

Professional
BERY

Investment

Management

REESER

BAAZEELRDHT
HZE2015F3A31H 281 52189%
MAEE  EFEEIBLHEZTEAS

=

By Business Sector
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BUSINESS REVIEW — MEMBERSHIP
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Profile of Corporate Members

As of 31 March 2015, there were 159 Corporate Members. BZE2015F3A31H  SFHE198 K
Begs -
By Membership Category By Business Sector
28 TED M
Brokerage
pes sl
Investment
Categorx*»;g Consultancy
RERR
C A Banking
ategorXﬁH s
Professional
Category B Services
B4l HERE
Investment
Category C & Fund
(ot :] Management
REESER
Others
Hity

Membership Growth and Engagement S EE M LHE
Membership growth and engagement are key drivers for CERERLHIESRRENTES S -

.\.A—Al:l

the HKSI Institute. We constantly engage Members in our
membership community through a variety of programmes and
initiatives including the following:

o New Members Cocktail — give new Members a warm
welcome and networking opportunities with achieved and
steadfast members

o Member Ambassadors — for promoting Membership to
extend the reach of our professional community

o "CPT Stars” — encourage Members to continuously
enhance themselves via the HKSI Institute’s CPT
programmes

. Mentoring Programme — for young Members to learn
from industry veterans

e  Scholarship Programme — for nurturing future leaders for
the industry

ﬂ Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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On top of the above, more exclusive programmes for learning
and networking were introduced in the financial year for
Member's participation. These programmes include the Horse
Racing Evening in conjunction with the HKEx Challenge Cup
Race and Health programmes for the HKSI Institute Leaders
(Honorary Fellows, Senior Fellows, Fellows, Board Directors,
Committee Members, and Corporate Nominees).

Revamped Member Area

The Member Area of the HKSI Institute’s website has recently
been enhanced to provide exclusive services to Members. After
logging in, not only can Members view the complimentary
e-Seminars for up to 3 CPT hours per year at their choices, but
can also check their CPT records obtained via the HKSI Institute
programmes, and to read presentation files of selected
seminars from our much welcomed "if you missed..."” series.

The Member Area will be enriched with more exclusive
features. In the near future, Members will be able to update
their personal information, enrol in our examinations, events
and education programmes, and check their HKSI Institute
activities history in the Member Area with a user-friendly
interface.

We thank the Membership Committee for their valuable
support and guidance on the initiative and other membership
programmes.
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FEATURE STORY — STUDY MISSION TO TOKYO

FERY — HAERE

-ﬂm
ARAnENABE

Tnstitute

2015 Study Mission to Tokyo

Sponsors: @:—.g SE NOMURA o,{_ o)

Delegation with Ms Kumiko Okazaki, Senior Economist and Director, Bank of Japan (front row, centre) at the Head Office of Bank of Japan.

ZREK B R A ARRITERE DA N s RECBMM 5 ARF (BT RARIRTTRITER -

Every year, the HKSI Institute leads a Study Mission of senior
practitioners to explore business opportunities and build
meaningful contacts with local regulators, government officials
and top corporate leaders in a key financial market in the
region.

In 2015, the destination of choice was Tokyo, which provided
those attending a unique opportunity to learn first-hand about
the changes and development in the Japanese economy under
Abenomics.

Led by the HKSI Institute Chairman Mr Craig Lindsay, Study
Mission Organising Committee Chairman Mr Kenju Ogyu and
Chief Executive Mrs Edith Ngan Chan, the 17-strong delegation
met with the very team who advises Japan’s Prime Minister Mr
Shinzo Abe on his three-arrow strategies and other main Japan
stakeholders in the financial services industry.

ﬂ Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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This outreach programme was also an excellent opportunity to
stay connected with the HKSI Institute Members working or
having operations in the city. The delegates were able to meet
with long time Member Mr Patrice Conxicoeur, Chief Executive
Officer of HSBC Global Asset Management (Japan) K.K., who
was relocated to Japan this year. The HKSI Institute is also
grateful to Corporate Members of Japanese origin — Nomura
International (Hong Kong) Ltd and Toyo Securities Asia Ltd —
who hosted the lunches during the Study Mission to welcome
the delegation to their home-town, reflecting a positive
testimony to the rich international composition and meaningful
engagement of the Institute’s corporate membership.

Further playing the ambassadorial role in the region, the HKSI
Institute connected the delegates with The Securities Analysts
Association of Japan (SAAJ), its fellow Asian Securities and
Investment Federation (ASIF) founding member. SAAJ not only
hosted a dinner reception for the delegates, but also invited
them to participate in SAAJ’s 6th international conference after
the trip.

(From left to right) Dr Bill Kwok, Past Chairman of HKSI
Institute and current Membership Committee Member;
Dr Ryohei Yanagi, Deputy CFO and Chief IR Officer,
Eisai Co., Ltd; Dr Yasuhiro Maehara, President and
Chief Executive Officer, The Securities Analysts
Association of Japan; Mrs Edith Ngan Chan, Chief
Executive, HKSI Institute; and Mr Craig Lindsay,
Chairman, HKSI Institute.
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FEATURE STORY — STUDY MISSION TO TOKYO

HEBE — RRERE

Two awardees from the HKSI Institute Young Talent
Programme’ were also privileged to join the Study Mission with
the support from I-Access Group Limited, which has generously
continued with its sponsorship for the third consecutive year. In
line with the Japan-theme, candidates submitted an essay on
“The Impact of Japanese Yen Depreciation on Its
Neighbouring Regions” to compete for the coveted spots to
Tokyo.

Submitted scripts were personally reviewed by Mr Louis Mak,
Chief Executive Officer of the I-Access Group, and the winners
are:

® Ms Sky Luo (Management Trainee, HKEx)
e Mr Edwin Mak (Undergraduate Student, Hong Kong Shue
Yan University)

The outreach programme enabled the awardees to gain
invaluable insights into the financial landscape of Japan, as well
as rare access to seasoned practitioners in the industry. The
event was made even more memorable as we witnessed the
historical moment of the Nikkei closing above 20,000 points for
the first time in 15 years and shared the joy with senior
representatives at the Tokyo Stock Exchange on the very day of
our visit.

—BEBEE-FRMENSZ ST R
' MERREREERRR - BTESR
RRBARZITOERE  2MEERS K
BERIATREHIIMENZE | X
B OUBRREEEENSEHRS -

—EEEITRARTELEEREEMX
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o EHUMA(BERSMEREZIIL)
o BEXEE(BEHCREARE)

Mr John Maguire, Board Director of HKSI Institute
(second from left) and Mr Louis Mak, CEO of I-Access
Group and Board Director of HKSI Institute (second
from right), flanked by awardees from the HKSI
Institute Young Talent Programme — Ms Sky Luo (far
left) and Mr Edwin Mak (far right).
BEEEEEMELE (L) S S2GEER—
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BEREREREBELRABREBANSE
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1 The HKSI Institute Young Talent Programme is the amalgamation of the HKSI
Institute Scholarship and the HKSI Institute Mentoring Programme.
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Having visited major cities in the region — including Bangkok,
Beijing, Jakarta, Kuala Lumpur, Seoul, Shanghai, Shenzhen,
Singapore, Taiwan, and Tokyo — these overseas study missions
proved to be a great platform to establish high-level contacts
and raise the HKSI Institute profile as a valuable professional
community. Promising direct and timely dialogues with

influencers of the industry, Members and practitioners alike can
always look forward to the compelling programmes and
initiatives from the HKSI Institute.

Mr Kenju Ogyu, Study Mission Organising Committee Chairman (left) presenting
a token of appreciation to Mr Hajime Mitsumori, Senior General Manager,
Self-Regulatory Planning Division, Japan Securities Dealers Association.
EREAMZ RS I RIERECE (D) ARAERENE B R mRLE
=REFLIXEY -

(From left to right) Mrs Edith Ngan Chan, Chief
Executive, HKSI Institute; Mr Tetsushi Shinoda,
Chairman, Toyo Securities Co., Ltd; Mr Craig Lindsay;
Chairman, HKSI Institute; and Ms Megumi Takarada,
Equity Analyst, Toyo Securities Co., Ltd at the lunch
seminar on 23 Apiril.
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BUSINESS REVIEW — OUTREACH
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Providing valuable access to industry leaders with thoughtful
programmes is our best service to Members and practitioners.
We actively engage stakeholders to ensure relevance and
timeliness of all our initiatives, and practitioners can look to
our programmes for both their personal and professional
development needs.

Events
During the year ended 31 March 2015, 31 CPT-accredited

seminars and key events were organised, registering more
than 2,300 enrolments. Highlighted events include the BEF and
Study Mission to Shanghai.

1

We also offer an online digest called “if you missed...” where

Members who were unable to attend our events in person can
catch up on the unique insights shared by our premier speakers
at the level of depth they desire, be it a high level summary, the
associated powerpoint presentation, or the entire recording of
the event. During the year ended 31 March 2015, we offered 16
"if you missed..."” for our selected events.

Compliance/
Regulatory
Updates
SRREEHRA

Ethics/
Corporate
Governance

BRIRARER

Technical/
Market Updates
iR
TiEH A
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SFC Executive Director Series

Events ' e Mainland-Hong Kong Mutual Recognition of Funds
o= The Mainland-Hong Kong Mutual Recognition of Funds ("MRF™) is a landmark milestone towards
Events Calendar If you missed ... at the HKS! Institute developing Hong Kong as a preferred fund domicile and investment management centre for funds.
The Securities and Futures Commission ("SFC") and m- China Securities Regulatory
Commission ("CSRC”) signed a of on MRF on 22 May
ety 2015, which will alow eligible Mainland and Hang Kong nmd- to be distributed in each other's
Ottver Events. market through a sireamiined procedure with effect from 1 July 2015. On the back of this
PR announcement. Ms Julla Leung, Executive Director, Investment Products Division of the SFC,
Outiook of Hong Kang and Mainisnd Cliva's spoke at the HKSI Institute's SFC Executive Director Series on 22 June 2015 to share with us the
Property Warkers objectives, general principles, features of this groundbreaking initiative and the SFC's future

strategy for the asset industry.

omic faciors affleceng e

re 1o knaw about the

w3l estile landscape in Hong Kong ang Likening this exciting time to the “Great Era”. a well-known local television drama, Ms Leung
Mainiand China stated that we are witnessing the Great Era of China's financial transformation.  The MRF is one

P 'xrvleJ of the cross-border financial inifiatives to facilitate Mainland’s integration into the global capital
. market. On a broader view, it will lay the foundation to a joint fund regulatory standard, promote
the integration of the Asian asset management industry, and channel Asian savings into

Eipcutve Dirpetor Investmant Proguets

Divemion of $FC

SFC Exscutive Director Series cross-border investments.
Mamiona-Hong Kong Mutusi Recognmmon of
Funcks (MRF)
Differentiating itself from a fund passport that requires a legal and political
Tre financial ingusiry is #xcited with the launch of Ms Leung stressed the MRF scheme is based on three
'::::r"\::rs . o.ci T ey general home rule, host rule, and equal treatment. The MRF
scheme not only allows investors to access each other's capital market in a mutual and balanced
Presented by @ waembers can view Ms Juia Leung's manner but also maintains the same high standard of investor protection despite different
M8 Julia Leung Gresentabon siides hom here regulatery regimes and market practices.

Under the MRF scheme, the SFC and CSRC will fast track applications from funds that are

Preseniad by _—_
Mr Charnes L
CNGTExecUtve Offcer ofHKEx [l Members can view br Charies Li's
presentabon snoes fom here

External Relations

Playing the ambassadorial role in the region, we bridge
Members and practitioners with local, regional and
international professional bodies, government agencies,
businesses and the academia through active dialogues
and collaborations. In addition, we take pride ourselves on
educating, promoting and enhancing Hong Kong's financial
services industry via participation in various media interviews,
speaking engagements, judging panels, as well as hosting
overseas visitors over the year.

HKS! Insthute Roundtable Luncheon in the home ion and are seeking approval to enter the host
ASREPRE Nt jurisdiction. For meeting the eligibility requirements, funds need to be established more than one
Aganst he bachtrop of Me evalulian of Hong year, to have a minimum size of RMB200 million or its equivalent, 1o invest not primarily in the host
Wong and Mainiand fnancial marwets. find out Jurisdiction, and to sell not more than half of its lotal assets to the investors in host jurisdiction.

ries Li locked aline ‘new nonmal wilh a Ms Leung indicated that ofishore funds which are managed in Hong Kong and have been
:, imo‘fi“jn‘r“;" s by s 115 authorised by the SFC for more than one year can re-domicile in Hang Kong to become eligible for

the MRF scheme. Global fund houses can take the opportunity to market their funds in Mainland

Members can access “If you missed...” via our website.
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Request for Interviews, Collaborations & Visits

Hk - BIERGEBE

Media
HeE

Financial
Institutions

SRS

Academic
Institutions

BiiAE

Others
Hith

We are grateful to the many invitations and opportunities
received, to help us drive our missions to set, raise and
promote professional standards for the financial services
industry. One such occasion was at the opening cocktail of
SPDB International Holdings Limited (SPDB International) on
25 March 2015, where Mrs Edith Ngan Chan, Chief Executive
of the HKSI Institute represented the profession to give a short
speech, highlighting the HKSI Institute’s role and commitment
to work closer with industry participants like the SPDB
International, to contribute to Hong Kong's position as a leading
international financial centre. Mrs Edith Ngan Chan also
attended the PWMA Dinner on 4 September 2015, in support
of its initiative to drive the development of PWM industry in
Hong Kong. Additionally, we are happy to lend support as
one of the judges for various awards, for example, the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA)'s Best
Corporate Governance Disclosure Awards 2014 and Metro
Finance's RMB Business Outstanding Awards 2015, to further
encourage positive development of corporate governance
standards.

Professional
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AR

Government
Bodies
BUR#E

B ToRERINBLEBRES 2
BMAHBEE  BAREESRRSE
EHKERF o BETHBHEMRENR
ZEF 20154 3 A 25 B 3 5 i iR B B
TRER AR CRREER) MAEES -
REABRHEES  ®HEgNACK
EYE BONEBRBIBRETELEERR
G NZEEBBEABLERSRF L
AL o REBEXBRLZLTNERE TRAVEE
BiRen2015F9 4B RTHBRE X
BRSHSEEVEEEITENER - It
AN ARG = B BIE T % (B SR IE AR
- PINEBSSTMASRECEERE
BHE R A SZ2014 RITHI & & AR ER
BEH R 822015 DU — P B ENVE R S E 1

XERIZE -

PWMA Dinner 2015
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Mrs Edith Ngan Chan was invited to
join the PWMA Dinner.
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On the international front, we facilitate exchanges with
associated professional bodies such as the Association of
Certified International Investment Analysts (ACIIA) and the ASIF
to enhance our industry qualifications offerings, as well as to
extend Hong Kong's footprint in the global market.

CPT Events
EINEE
Judging
Panels
FTEE
Speaking Stakeholder
Invitation — Communication
Media
Interviews
RE
Website
ik

At the forefront of industry connectivity and relevance,
we act as a responsible corporate citizen to bridge our
Members and practitioners with professional organisations,
regulators, businesses, and academia via active dialogues and
collaborations with key stakeholders on market issues and
development. We also play an active role in grooming talent
for the future of the industry. Further details are set out in the
Corporate Social Responsibility Report from pages 101 to 107.

Last but not least, we are grateful for the continuous guidance
and supervision of the Outreach Committee in ensuring the
quality of our events.
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Key Programmes

TEAY

Roundtable Luncheon Series

ERFEZRT

Growing and Entrenching
Hong Kong as an IFC
EEFRERSEAP O

Mr Charles Li
/NN E

Chief Executive, HKEx
BEBRGTITERAEE

Chief Officer Series
=B BERT

The Ever Changing
Corporate Governance
Landscape and the
Evolving Role of INEDs in
Company Boards
REAERRBILFHEN
At

Mr Patrick Sun
FEERERE

Chairman,

The Chamber of Hong Kong
Listed Companies

BRELTARIEEERE

Honorary Fellow Series
REERGERT

Shanghai vs Hong Kong
— China’s Future Financial

Centre
FEARRNESEA D - BE
BHEE

The Hon Ronald Arculli
BEELE

Study Mission to Shanghai
tBEER

The mission trip obtained
the latest update on the
dynamic economic
developments in the vibrant
city before the launch of
Stock Connect.
ERBIEREBHELAT - £
KT EEALEENWHH
RAER -

Shanghai-Hong Kong
Stock Connect

Mr Bryan Chan
BRI SEE

Co-Head,

Equities, Fixed Income and
Currency, Global Markets
Division, HKEx

ERR BRI MISE
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Regional Market Update Series
5 M ZT

Thailand’s Opportunities
Amid Challenges:
Focusing on
Fundamentals

RENEBNMRE

Dr Pakorn Peetathawatchai

Executive Vice President,

Head of Corporate Strategy &
Finance Division,

The Stock Exchange of Thailand
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Meet Your Government Official
(MYGO) Series
BEXAER RS

Public Consultation on
"Core Fund"” -
Providing Better
Investment Solutions for
MPF Members
BEESROLESARESH

Mr Darren McShane
SHEEE
Chief Regulation & Policy

Officer, MPFA
BeRRERBURRE

Shanghai-Hong Kong
Stock Connect: The
Operational Details
BB EEEMED

Ms Olivia Mak

BB L

Vice President of Cash Trading
Department, HKEx
BEXSMRNER ZEIEE

Mr Kalvin Chao

IEES it

Vice President of Cash Clearing
Operations, HKEx

BBR M

In-town Guest Series
THEEE RS

Is there a Disconnect
between the Asset
Markets and the Level of
Global Economic Activity?

BEEMSNRREEES

Dr John Greenwood
WrEEE LT
Group Chief Economist,

Invesco Limited
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Autumn Dinner 2014
2014 ENEBRE

Prof KC Chan as Guest of
Honour and Dr Eddy Fong
inducted as the HKSI
Institute Honorary Fellow
PR SBHBR R IEE XS 5=
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Meet Your Government Official
(MYGO) Series
BEEALER R

Hong Kong's Financial
Sector : Half-way
Through the 2010s and
Way Forward
EENETETE

Miss Au King-Chi
BRELL

Permanent Secretary for
Financial Services & the
Treasury (Financial Services),
FSTB
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Chief Officer Series
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Real Estate Market
Outlook for Hong Kong
and China
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Mr Sherman Lai
FRRE ST A
Chairman,

Centaline (Holdings) Company
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Chief Officer Series
SEBERS

Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) —
The KMB Story
TEHEEMT  NBHKE

Mr Edmond Ho
A4

Managing Director,

The Kowloon Motor Bus
Company (1933) Limited
NEBRLE(—A==)ERAFE
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CHAIRMAN'S COCKTAIL 2014

Roundtable Luncheon Series

ERFEZ7

Regulatory Developments
on Shanghai-Hong Kong
Stock Connect and SFC's
Recent Initiatives
BEBENAERREREES
PR

Mr Ashley Alder

BUER L

Chief Executive Officer, SFC
EEESITHAAR

8th Business Ethics Forum

BENEEREETWE

The HKSI Institute's
signature event to
champion business ethics
awareness in the financial
industry. See Feature Story
— Business Ethics Forum
from pages 91 to 96.
EEZSNEREIBNR
ETRENBERIETER -
FEFIIEE [HRRE
- ERETwmiE]

Chairman’s Cocktail 2014
2014 FXEEE

Mr Carlson Tong
FERKSEE
Chairman, SFC
BEETE

Joint Event: HKSI Institute &
APSA
DAGEEREASHBS LM

FATCA - Asia Pacific take-up
of Intergovernmental
Agreements and Practical
Issues Facing Financial
Institutions
XEOBINRFHRIERER)

- DABEBFHRNRARS
BREEHNEREE

Mr Peter Kilner

Partner, Clifford Chance
BEMBEMEBEAEZA

Mr Dauwood Malik

Partner, Clifford Chance
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Joint Event: HKSI Institute &
APSA
DAZEEREATHES AN
Retail Structured Products:
Global Regulatory and
Industry Landscape
SEABLEER 2HEER
TEAMRR

Ms Maria Xuereb
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EHPHEEA

Ms Jyoti Vazirani
Director, Enterprise Risk
Services, Deloitte China
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SFC Executive Director Series

BEEHRTEERS

SFC Executive Director Series

BEERTEERT

Meet Your Government Official
(MYGO) Series
BEXAER RS

Looking Ahead as China Opens
its Capital Account
HERBRERRFHRKRE

Mrs Alexa Lam
REL L

Deputy Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director, Investment
Products, SFC
BESETRAHFREERD

Challenges in Upholding the
Integrity of Markets
HERTISREABENLE

Mr James Shipton

M RS

Executive Director, Intermediaries
Division, SFC
BESHNEEDBNTES

Audit Regulatory Reform
EITEERE

Mr Mark Dickens

Miﬂ /%\ﬁ EE

Chief Executive Officer,
Financial Reporting Council

HISER BT AR

HITES

HKEx's Proposal for Volatility
Control Mechanism and Closing
Auction Session

BB Z sl AR E B I K%
BHHRER S RRNES

Ms Sally Kwok
WKL

Senior Vice President, Market
Infrastructure and Products,
Cash Trading of Global Markets,
HKEXx
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Joint Event: HKSI Institute & HKIRA
BARAEEBARHSHRES S

Investment Effectiveness
Improved through Investor
Relations (IR)

Dr Eva Chan
PRATEH LT

Chairman,
The Hong Kong Investor Relations
Association
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Study Mission to Tokyo Chief Officer Series
RRERE REBERS

The mission trip to obtain the
latest update on the outlook of
"Abenomics”. See Feature Story
— Study Mission to Tokyo from
pages 77 to 80.

ERE TR ERBEEN&INE
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The Winning Story of Giordano
- Making Choices
RiE R NEUS 2B

Dr Peter Lau
2R EE A

Chairman and Chief Executive,
Giordano International Limited

T RBER B R A B £ EHRITHAER

Roundtable Luncheon Series

ERFEZRT

Adjusting to the New Normal
R &

Mr Charles Li
/NN E

Chief Executive, HKEx
BEBRGPTITERAEE

Future Directions — Providing Better
Investment Solutions for MPF Members

BRAO-RABRTRERHUEARESR

Mr Darren McShane
BHELE

Chief Regulation & Policy Officer, MPFA
B RRE RBREE

Ms Lau Ka Shi
ElEA
Managing Director & CEO,

BCT Group
BCT SRt &= [ 5 S0 A IR FR1T AR 2L

Joint Event:
HKSI Institute & APSA
DAGEBERELAGHES S

PRC Securitisation —
Recent Legal Developments

REFES - EHHNEERRE
Mr Kingsley Ong
T EEE

Partner, Eversheds

REBEBEMEBIEBA

Mr Aaron Liu
BB E

Registered Foreign Lawyer,
Eversheds
2 & B R AN S RS PR M SN 2 B
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SFC Executive Director Series

BEERTEERS

Mainland-Hong Kong Mutual
Recognition of Funds

AtEEBESHR

Ms Julia Leung
REFERL

Executive Director,
Investment Products Division, SFC
BEEREEMPNTES

New Office Opening Ceremony
Eoig N R

Guest of Honour:
FEEE

Miss Salina Yan
B L

Deputy Secretary (Financial Services), FSTB
PREBREHKRINER (MEEH)

Meet Your Government Official Mainland Mission to Shenzhen and
(MYGO) Series Henggqin
BEEAERRT

Wealth Management Business - Is Risk
Culture a Game Changer?

MEEEEK B bR BBEERA 2

Mr Arthur Yuen
FrE1E 5 &

R REZEEE

The mission trip to tap opportunities
arising from the capital market
development in Shenzhen and the rapid
expansion of Henggin Zhuhai.
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Deputy Chief Executive, HKMA
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FEATURE STORY — BUSINESS ETHICS FORUM 2015

HERE — 2015 FHFRBETHE

Business ethics is a subject close to the HKSI Institute’s heart.
On 22 January 2015, the Institute hosted its 8th BEF during the
International Financial Week following the Asian Financial
Forum, to advocate ethical behaviour and best practices
specifically for the financial industry.

The full-day forum, themed “Ethics and Leadership”, featured
20 distinguished speakers and panelists who examined the
inherent value of leadership in promoting ethical behaviour,
and its effects on business operation and performance.

He

Business Ethics
Forum 2015

Ethics and Leadership

Opening Remarks by The Hon John Tsang, Financial Secretary of the HKSAR Government.

ERFRITRER A B A R R G EELEBFHEH -

The Hon John Tsang, Financial Secretary of the Government of
HKSAR, delivered the opening remarks, setting the scene for
this important subject. Dr Edgar Cheng, Founding Chairman
and Honorary Fellow of the HKSI Institute, then took the stage
for his keynote speech, highlighting his observations that
professional standards need to aim at more than compliance,
and the importance of incentives to encourage such behaviour.
To improve ethical standards, he opined that the solution
entailed a combination of training, walking the talk by the
Board and senior management in driving an ethical culture
through the organisation, and including ethical conduct in
performance evaluation.

ﬂ Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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Four remarkable discussion panels ensued, covering topics
from the perspectives of regulators, regional and local
professional bodies, business managers as well as human
resource and talent management advisors. These include:

e Key regulatory and enforcement work on unethical
behaviour;

® Regional experience on defining ethical standards in cross-
cultural environment;

e Key success factors for building a win-win ethical culture to
business, customers and regulators; and

e Demographics trends, talent gaps, hiring practices and
remuneration packages to promote ethical culture.
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Exclusive luncheon with The Hon Bernard Chan.

FEGHREBEELH -

sl

Business Ethics
Forum_ 2015

Ethics and Leadership |

Keynote Address by Dr Edgar Cheng, FHKSI (Hon),
Founding Chairman of the HKSI Institute.
SgrlgrRleREL(REREERGR)ERE

R -

The special luncheon with The Hon
Bernard Chan, eminent leader in the
Asian business and financial sectors and
member of Hong Kong's Executive
Council, shared his perspectives on what
it meant to be “setting an ethical culture
from the top” in the context of a family-
owned company. The discussion
moderated by Ms Angela Mackay,
Managing Director of Financial Times,
laid the grounds for the afternoon
sessions which explored the practical
challenges and benefits of administering
ethical measures in business.
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FEATURE STORY — BUSINESS ETHICS FORUM 2015

HERE — 2015 FFXBRTWE

Panel Discussions:

BB =S -
=S &= p' afl -

Moderator:
Ms Barbara Shiu
Past HKSI Institute Chairman

Panelists:
e Ms Meena Datwani
Director-General (Enforcement), HKMA
e Mr Mark Steward
Executive Director (Enforcement Division), SFC
e Ms Monica Yu
Executive Director, Hong Kong Ethics Development
Centre, Independent Commission Against Corruption

Moderator:

Dr Bill Kwok

Managing Director, Wocom Holdings Ltd;
Past HKSI Institute Chairman

Panelists:
* Dr Lin Yixiang
President,

Securities Analysts Association of China
e Dr Yasuhiro Maehara
President and Chief Executive Officer,
The Securities Analysts Association of Japan
e Mr Russell Thomas
Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director,
Financial Services Institute of Australasia

1st Panel Discussion

E—BEENR

Topic: Key Regulatory and Enforcement
Areas on Unethical Behavior.
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2nd Panel Discussion

ERE EBE

Topic: Sharing Regional Perspectives on
Developing Ethical Culture in Financial
Services Business.
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Moderator:

Mr Anthony Muh

Chief Executive Officer, H.R.L. Morrison & Co Capital
Management; Past HKSI Institute Chairman

Panelists:
o Mr Henry Lai
Chairman, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
o Ms Lau Ka Shi
Chairman, Hong Kong Trustees’ Association
o Mr Patrick Sun
Chairman, The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies

Moderator:

Miss Angelina Kwan

Head of Regulatory Compliance, Listing and Regulatory
Affairs Division, HKEx; Past HKSI Institute Professional Events
Committee Chairman

Panelists:

° Ms Alice Au
Co-Head, CEO & Board Services Practice, Asia Pacific
and Member of Global Board, Spencer Stuart

J Mr Paul Pong

Human Capital Committee Member, FSDC
o Mr Martin Rogers

Partner, Davis Polk & Wardwell

3rd Panel Discussion

FE-BEENW

Topic: How Building an Ethical Culture
can be a Win-Win to Business, Customers
and Regulators, and the Key Success
Factors for Building Such Culture.
FREEUDLE BFREEHBRERANZR
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4th Panel Discussion
FNEEE W

Topic: Demographics Trends, Talent
Gaps, Hiring Practices and Remuneration
Packages to Promote Ethical Culture.
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FEATURE STORY — BUSINESS ETHICS FORUM 2015
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Encapsulating a rewarding day of sharing and discussion by
leaders of the industry and questions from the floor, Mr
Anthony Neoh, Honorary Fellow of the HKSI Institute and past
Chairman of the SFC gave an inspiring closing remark. He
stressed that the inculcation of an ethical culture must be an
integral part of all board and management decisions, making
reference to Hong Kong's anti-corruption history to
demonstrate that an ethical government is the foundation of
building ethical culture in every aspects of the society,
including the business sector.

All'in all, the BEF2015 was a game setter, thanks to the
passionate support of the stellar speakers and panelists on
business ethics, as well as from Members, Sponsors,
Advertisers, Lead Supporting Organisations, Media Partners
and Supporting Organisations alike, giving the subject —
Business Ethics — the level of attention it very much deserves.
Making the event even more meaningful, the HKSI Institute had
the privilege of having fellow keynote speakers, moderators,
panelists as well as the Institute’s Senior Fellows and Fellows
contributing their quotes on Ethics, showcasing the broad
support and convictions amongst our leaders in the industry on
the importance of high ethical standard to the financial services
professionals and industry in Hong Kong.

Closing Remarks by Mr Anthony Neoh, FHKSI (Hon),
Chief Advisor to the China Securities Regulatory

Comm/’ssion
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Special Thanks

We extend our deep gratitude to the following sponsors,

partners and leaders for their support of the BEF 2015:

Gold Sponsors:
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
I-Access Group Limited

Silver Sponsors:
KPMG

The World-Wide Investment Co. Limited

Crystal Sponsor:

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited

Advertisers:

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
BOCOM International Holdings Company Limited

Lingnan University — MIBF & HRMOB
PricewaterhouseCoopers

REORIENT Financial Markets Limited
Toyo Securities Asia Limited

Lead Supporting Organisations:
Securities and Futures Commission
Hong Kong Monetary Authority

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority

Financial Dispute Resolution Centre

Media Partners:
BENCHMARK
Financial Times

Master of Ceremonies:
Mr Colin Shaftesley

We thank our industry leaders for contributing their insightful quotes

on business ethics to our BEF brochure.
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of ceremonies
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Board Director of
the HKSI Institute
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BUSINESS REVIEW — FINANCE AND OPERATIONS
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Finance and Operations Department provides financial control
and reporting, business support and other administrative
functions to the HKSI Institute’s operations and projects
including the following areas:

o Finance and Company Secretary

° Business Support
o Information Technology
° Human Resources

° Administration

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income recorded surplus of
HK$3.2 million, compared to a deficit of HK$2.0 million in
previous financial year. The improved financial performance is
mainly due to a significant increase in income from
examinations, education and outreach programmes while we
are able to stabilise our costs.

Analysis of the HKSI Institute’s revenue and operating expenses is
presented in the Financial Highlights section on pages 53 to 55.

The Audit Committee met on 16 September 2015 to review the
directors’ report and consolidated financial statements and
receive the audit finding presentation from our honorary
auditor, KPMG. The Audit Committee unanimously
recommended the directors’ report and the consolidated
financial statements for approval by the Board.

Cash Flow Management

The HKSI Institute is a non-profit making and self-financing
organisation and therefore we always strive to achieve at least
an operating break-even. However, examination income, the
major source of income with over half of the total gross
revenue, is mainly driven by the enrolment numbers of the LEs
which are highly correlated to Hong Kong’s economy and
financial market environment, and will significantly influence
the overall financial performance of the HKSI Institute. Given
the unpredictability of income, we maintain our reserves mainly
in the form of cash to ensure our operations are sustainable. As
at 31 March 2015, cash and cash equivalents amounted to $36.9
million (2014: $27.3 million), which was enough to support the
operations for over 12 months even if no income is generated.
The Board of Directors is closely monitoring our cash reserve
position and LE enrolment situation, and will take appropriate
action where necessary.

g Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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Shenzhen Operations

The HKSI Institute’'s wholly-owned subsidiary in Shenzhen
provides professional consultancy service to Mainland China
clients for education and development programmes on a
project basis. However, its operation is relatively small
compared to the operations in Hong Kong.

Our People

The HKSI Institute not only sets, raises, and promotes standards
for the professionals of the financial services industry, but also
invests in its own staff to ensure quality service to our Members
and the community. We launched a variety of training
programmes to its staff for the pursuit of self-improvement as
well as professionalism.

Date Topic
H# ES|
9/5/2014

AES

BerRXNEEMBRBINARESA -
[P B AR FREA B EEIRED
BEFERRS - A HEREBBFR -
H2@ERREU) -

HFWE T

BeTMERSTRIRBERE ~ =7 Rt
FKAEE - RERB T - ARERE T
EREE M EREEERY - RMIRE
THHZEEIRE - BEEHEEKER
BEXEZE-

English Business Writing Skills — Effective External Communication

REBEEBRIERT — AREIINER

12/5 & 15/5/2014

English Business Writing Skills — Improve Your Writing Styles

REABRIERD —RERERR

13/5 & 16/5/2014
70{a] % E SMART B 12
14/6/2014

How to write SMART Objectives

Skill sharing on how to prepare fillable PDF Form

RN N 832 AT EE S PDF R I 0 =

11/7/2014 & 11/9/2014
fEAE R (RLER) 15BN 43
23 & 24/2/2015
NBAR IS — £ —&&

Apart from working hard, the HKSI Institute recognises the
importance of positive relationship and energy amongst staff
members. Thanks to the Staff Recreation Committee (SRC)
formed by representatives from different departments,
colleagues enjoyed work-life balance and a happy environment
at work too.

The activities include staff spring dinner, summer excursion to
Lamma and Christmas party. We appreciate the effort from the
SRC members as well as the sponsorship from Board Directors
and senior management that made the activities... perfect.

Enneagram Workshop — Class 1

Introduction to the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance

BENIHE BETEEEIZHEER
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BUSINESS REVIEW — FINANCE AND OPERATIONS
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Staff Recreation Committee

Ms Cally CHAN (Chairman) (Human Resources)
Miss Katy CHAN (Finance & Operations)

Ms Virginia LAU (CE Office)

Miss Tammy LEUNG (Membership & Outreach)
Mr Leo NG (Education & Development)

Mr Sunny SIU (Curriculum & Examinations)

Future Development of the HKSI Institute

New Office

The HKSI Institute moved from the 24th floor at the Wing On
Centre to the new office on the 5th floor effective from 17
August 2015. The move and enhancement of our facility brings
together the training/office area and the examination centre,
which was previously on a separate floor.

A “Space Committee” was established to advise the HKSI
Institute on lease renewal and office renovation process. We
would like to express our appreciation to the thoughts and
contribution made by the Space Committee members as well
as guidance of Executive Committee and the Board.

g Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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Members of Space Committee
Mr Craig LINDSAY (Chairman)
Ms Samantha HO

Mr Louis MAK

Mr Philip TYE

Mr Alex MAK (Secretary)

On 2 September 2015, more than 110 members and guests
attended our “New Office Opening Ceremony” to celebrate
this important milestone of the HKSI Institute and visited our
new facility. We had great pleasure to have Miss Salina Yan, JP,
Deputy Secretary (Financial Services) of the FSTB, to be the
Guest of Honour officiating the occasion.

HKSI New e-platforms

With the inspiration and support from SFC, the development of
a new information system and an advanced learning platform
(ALP) are under development. This ALP will offer an innovative
web interface and variety of online services for members and
practitioners such as to review their learning records and enrol
in required activities in a more convenient way. Special thanks
are also due to the Advanced Learning Platform Steering
Committee and the Board for providing significant and
invaluable advice throughout the design and development
process.

Members of
Advanced Learning Platform Steering Committee

Mr Craig LINDSAY (Chairman)
Mr Steven BERNSTEIN

Mr Paul DAY

Mr Louis MAK

Mr Trini TSANG

Ms Ruth KUNG (Secretary)

It is planned that the ALP will be delivered in phases with the
enhanced management information system launched in the
first quarter of 2016 and the new learning management system
and multimedia learning platform completed by the first
quarter of 2017.
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CSR REPORT
TRERHEEEERS

Our initiatives on corporate social responsibility focus on four
areas: engaging on the market consultation and development,
grooming of talent for the industry, promoting environmental
protection in our services and workplace, and caring for the
community.

Engagement in Market Consultation and
Development

The HKSI Institute plays an active role as a conduit between the
industry and our Members/examination candidates. Invitation
to participate in consultations and promotion for development
of the industry in the reporting period are listed as follows:

4/2014 Consultation Paper Concerning the Regulation
of Alternative Liquidity Pools

6/2014 Greater Flexibility for Dissemination of Prices
and Net Asset Values by Authorized Funds
SFC Proposes to Amend Exemptions for
Disclosure Obligations

7/2014 Public Consultation on “Core Fund”
OTC Derivative Transactions — Reporting and
Record Keeping

8/2014 Weighted Voting Rights Concept Paper

1/2015 Proposal for Introduction of Volatility Control
Mechanism in the Securities and Derivatives
Markets and Closing Auction Session for the
Securities Market

1/2015 Key Attributes of Effective Resolution Regimes
for Financial Institutions

3/2015 Principles of Responsible Ownership

In addition, we have also conducted two online surveys to seek
opinion from our Members on Stock Connect and Weighted
Voting Rights.

@ Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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Talent Grooming

We have two major programmes designed to serve young
professionals and embrace potential entrants into our
professional community: Scholarship Programme and
Mentoring Programme.

Scholarship Programme

Turning into the second decade since the HKSI Institute
Scholarship Programme (“Scholarship”) was first launched in
2004, the Scholarship has provided an avenue for outstanding
students from the business and finance stream of local
universities to advance their professional development. Over
the years, we witnessed 556 awardees benefiting from the
invaluable learning opportunities and being groomed to be the
young talents serving the financial industry. The Scholarship
was further revamped to increase its attractiveness and
practical experience by providing internship placement
opportunities with our Corporate Members.

This year, 20 awardees were nominated by nine participating
universities. Six finalists were selected from the cohort based
on their written submission on the topic: “What should Hong
Kong do now to strengthen our status as a leading offshore
RMB center?”

The finalists met the panel of judges to compete for the top
three places. The top scholars received cash prizes and
internship opportunities sponsored by our Members. We
express our deep grateful for their contribution.
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Our Panel of Judges, (From left to right) Dr Bill Kwok, Mr John Maguire, Mrs Edith Ngan Chan, and Mr Lewis Wan, with the finalists of the Scholarship

Programme.
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Panel of Judges

Mr John MAGUIRE (Chair)
Head of Corporate Finance, REORIENT Financial Markets Ltd

Dr Bill KWOK
Managing Director, WOCOM Holdings Ltd

Mr Lewis WAN
Chairman, The Pride Group

Mrs Edith NGAN CHAN
Chief Executive, the HKSI Institute

Winners and Prizes
Winner
Ms Wendy WEI (The Hong Kong Polytechnic University)

Cash Prize:
HK$3,000 sponsored by The Pride Group

Internship:
Two-week internship at Shanghai Pudong Development Bank
Co Ltd

1st Runner-up

Mr Tim MAN (The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology)

Cash Prize:
HK$2,000 sponsored by The Pride Group

Internship:
One-week internship at REORIENT Financial Markets Ltd

2nd Runner-up

Ms Serena CUI (Hong Kong Baptist University)

Cash Prize:
HK$1,000 sponsored by The Pride Group

Attachment:
Shadowing programme with Mr Paul Day, Managing Director
of Morgan Stanley

@ Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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2014/15 Awardees
2014/15 FEBREL

*

Senior Awardees & 448 ;

Junior Awardees #1448 :

Finalist for Panel Interview

SHEFEERASRE

Mr Keith CHENG (City University of Hong Kong)
BEGRE(BEUMALR)

Mr Gordon CHOI (The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology)
BENEE (BERRAR)

Mr Dicky KWONG (Lingnan University)

BEBELE (BRAR)

Mr Peter LEE (Lingnan University)

FERSE (BEHARSR)

Mr Edwin MAK (Hong Kong Shue Yan University)

BEN A (BERTCKRE)

Ms WANG Jiagiu (City University of Hong Kong)
FENNME(BERMASR)

Mr Kevin WONG (Hong Kong Shue Yan University)*
FaEBEE (BB KRE)

Mr YAM Tsz Kit (The University of Hong Kong)

EFarE (FEKRR)

Ms Jessica YANG (The Hong Kong Polytechnic University)
B/ ME(BAEEIARE)

Ms Michelle CHAO (The Open University of Hong Kong)
Ko MA (BERFAR)

Mr Harris CHEN (The Hong Kong Polytechnic University)*
BRBERE (FERIARE)

Mr Thomas CHEN (Hong Kong Shue Yan University)

PREE T4 (BBBCKRE)

Mr Frank FAN (The University of Hong Kong)

SEEEEAE (BEARR)

Mr Alfred LAM (Lingnan University)*
MIRZR e (B RE)

Ms Grace LIN (The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology)
MFER/NE (BBRHRKE)

Mr LIU Yang (City University of Hong Kong)

Gk (BBHMAR)

Mr Rocky SHUM (The Chinese University of Hong Kong)
SEEFE (BBHXKRE)
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Mentoring Programme A& a2l

The Mentoring Programme is another important initiative to AR EE S —ENEREE - B
provide young Members with a unique avenue to learn from FRIERATRH-EARNERAEKREESR
experienced ones. Since its launch in 2013, the HKSI Institute EMEAERE - B2013FHEEGRRET
has offered mentee positions to over 200 candidates. ZILAZE - ERZ2EALTRMH200ZE2E

e

Apart from the interaction between each mentoring group, RERRAAHRZRIN  BEMERE
there are also three mentor sharing sessions held for mentees FIRRAZERMT = HEMHES °

to learn from mentors in a cosy setting.

10/2014 Ms Samantha Ho and Mr Oliver Goh
{8 22 = & Oliver Goh %4
Preparing for A Career As A Portfolio Manager/Mentoring Program — My
Thoughts
RIREBEA BB ERR RETE — HEBEE

11/2014 Dr Eva Chan and Mr Louis Mak
RaEBE LT RRAERE
How to Win the Game
PIh 2 i

1/2015 Mr Steve Bernstein and Mr CB Lim

Steve Bernstein 5t 4 RREF| £ 4
Strategies to Win My Game

B R A
The mentees welcomed the useful expert guidance from BEXENEMNEREIREREEN
personal contacts with mentors as well as the expert talks Wae  ERR%E -

delivered.

We are thankful for seasoned practitioners playing the
mentor role to groom young talents.
BERHEREENERERALTEEEM
BEFEAL -

Mentee Mr James Ho presented a thank you card

to mentor Mr John Maguire after

a Mentor Sharing Session.

BT BB EMEREEE— ALY Z& %
AR AR EBURREI R
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Career Talks

In addition to the two programmes, the HKSI Institute also
proactively reaches out to young and promising students to
introduce our full suite of services paving the way for their
career development. We received the delegates of the Finance
Society, University of Macau and briefed them on the role of
the HKSI Institute in the Hong Kong financial industry. We also
delivered talks in HKU SPACE Community College, Lingnan
University, Hong Kong Shue Yan University with an aim to
better prepare the undergraduates for entry into the job

markets. In order to reach out to a wider audience, we also
participated in the Classified Post Career Forum and promoted
the qualifications and examinations to job seekers.

PEBRE

br bt m{ERTEION - B ERREEBE
MEEHERRMEEMRT - AEBZR
BB - HMEFRERMRNESHE
BeHRE  MMMANTAESEEESH
E¥MAC e i BRPEEBRENES
Bt  sEm RS HEBCKBRMNEE -
EEMPIARBEEABSERDEH - B
BAZR  HPIE L8 T Classified Post
Career Forum - [A) KB & H#E B H PR &1
REH -

Prof KC Chan visited the HKSI Institute booth in the
Tai Po Business and Career Expo in July 2015.
BRRBHBEEER S S 1E 2015F 7 A RTHAHE A%
MEBEEE LWEM -

Hong Kong Securitiedf™ 2

and Investm

The HKSI Institute participated in the Classified
Post Career Forum and promoted the
qualifications and examinations to job seekers.
2 2 Classified Post Career Forum

AR EEERMNERREH

Environment Protection in our Services and
Workplace

As a professional organisation, the HKSI Institute is committed
to providing environmentally friendly options in the services we
provide to our stakeholders and a green workplace for our
staff. Over the past few years, we have implemented a number
of green measures as follows:

° offering Computer-based Examination (CBE) sessions
since 2008. In this year, Paper-based Examination sessions
have been reduced to 6 sessions only or less than 1% of
our total examination sessions held.

ent Insti
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FOERERELSEIRFEETHER
B BEHE  RMACERA TZHERRK

556

«  H20FEEHEMEEER - 5
FERABEANZHERERE N

5 HEEBEEFZRTE% -

ERBHNIREDE o« —_ T NFFRH

ko



CSR REPORT
TEAEEEIRE

e  offering e-study manuals to examination candidates since
2009.

° adopting an online registration system for examinations,
events and training course enrolments since 2004.

e adopting electronic course and event evaluation forms.

e  sending event promotion and invitation materials to
members and practitioners via emails.

e  circulating internal staff memo and announcements via
emails.

o scheduling meetings via electronic diaries and room
booking systems.

e sending electronic greeting cards in Christmas and New
Year seasons.

o implementing the “Plastic Shopping Bag Charging
Scheme” effective from 1 April 2015.

We will continue our effort in environment protection initiatives
in the future. For example, the development of an advanced
learning platform for our education and development
programmes will significantly reduce the volume of paper-
based training materials. Traditional paper-formed examination
results slips will be replaced by electronic ones by request. On
the operational side, paperless solution is also one of the key
objectives of the new management information system under
development. We are also planning to provide electronic
tablets to Board and Committee Members during meetings in
order to enhance efficiency and promote environmental
protection. It is expected that our paper consumption and
carbon emission will be further reduced significantly once these
initiatives are implemented in the foreseeable future.

Contribution to Community

The HKSI Institute continued to participate in Dress Casual Day
organised by The Community Chest on 30 September 2014.
Over 60% of our staff supported this event by dressing casual
to work and making a donation to bring hope to the less
privileged. It demonstrates the generosity of our staff and their
genuine care and concern for those in need.

@ Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute ® Annual Report 2015
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EER®EE

The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2015.

Principal place of business

Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute (the “Institute”)
is an institute incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and
has its registered office and principal place of business at
Room 506-512, 5th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong.

Principal activities

The Institute and its subsidiaries (the "group”) offer those who
are interested in pursuing a career within the financial services
industry a comprehensive programme of high quality
professional training, events and internationally recognised
examinations which aim to assist individuals achieve their own
professional goals within the industry.

Further discussion and analysis of the principal activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, including
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
group and an indication of likely future developments in the
group’s business, can be found in the Business Review set out
in Annual Report. This review forms part of this directors’
report.

Financial statements

The financial performance of the group for the year ended 31
March 2015 and the financial position of the Institute and the
group as at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 113 to 139.

Transfer to general fund

Surplus for the year of HK$3,154,600 (2014: deficit of
HK$1,965,904) has been transferred to the general fund. Other
movements in the general fund are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EER#%E

Directors

The directors of the Institute during the financial year and up to

the date of this report are:

Mr Craig Blaser Lindsay (Chairman)
(retired and re-elected on 9 December 2014)
Prof Michael Arthur Firth
Dr Cynthia Kit Lan Lam
Mr John Martin Maguire
Mr Colin Stuart Shaftesley
Mr Trini Chi Suen Tsang
Ms Anna Wai Kwan Wong
Ms Kit Shuen Ng
(appointed on 9 December 2014)
Mr Chi Fai Shek
(retired and re-appointed on 9 December 2014)

Mr Ying Kwan Wong
(retired and re-appointed on 9 December 2014)

Mr Joseph Ho Lim Chan

(elected on 9 December 2014)
Mr Paul Alastair Grant Day

(elected on 9 December 2014)
Prof Vincent Pun Fong Kwan

(elected on 9 December 2014)
Mr Hung Bun Lee

(elected on 9 December 2014)
Mr Kwong Fai Mak

(elected on 9 December 2014)
Ms Edith Manling Ngan

(retired on 23 September 2014)
Mr Ping Keung Chan

(retired on 9 December 2014)
Mr Ringo Kwok Keung Chiu

(retired on 9 December 2014)
Ms Samantha Shuk Yee Ho

(retired on 9 December 2014)
Mr Philip Andrew Tye

(retired on 9 December 2014)
Mr Peter Shiu Hoi Wong

(retired on 9 December 2014)

Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute © Annual Report 2015
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In addition, the directors of the Institute’s subsidiaries during
the period from the beginning of the financial year to the date
of this report are as follows:

Ms Edith Manling Ngan
Mr Alex Chun Yin Mak
Ms Daisy Suk Yin Lo

Directors’ interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
which the Institute, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the
Institute had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
honorary auditors of the Institute is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the board
Mr Craig Lindsay
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 September 2015
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AUDITOR’S REPORT
2GR

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute

(Incorporated in Hong Kong as a company limited by
guarantee)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute (the “Institute”)
and its subsidiaries (together “the group”) set out on pages
113 to 139, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2015, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in general fund and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Institute are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute © Annual Report 2015
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the group as at 31
March 2015 and of the group'’s financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 16 September 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e EERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #Z —F—HF=HA=+—RA LFEZ (LLUBHEITR)
Note 2015 2014
B =
Revenue A
Examination income ZH WA $ 26,534,596 20,849,470
Continuing professional training = eS| [E SN
course income 10,306,988 8,404,434
Annual fees from members SEFE 4,088,809 3,993,167
Entrance fees from members NS PN = 33,000 14,640
Professional development HEERERMFTZIRA
seminar income 2,101,844 2,061,715
Sale of study materials SHEM B MR 153,046 105,810
Cost of sales HEREK
Cost of study materials sold SHERFE MR AR (15,625) (12,012)
Other income Hag A
Interest income T E WA 237,293 192,366
Other income RN 4,538,099 1,951,949
$ 47,978,050 37,561,539
Expenditure T
Staff costs 8 TS 4 $ 26,101,922 22,652,671
Examination expenses ZH L H 1,039,504 1,392,316
Continuing professional FrER RIS
training expenses 2,151,415 2,433,433
Printing and stationery ENfpl 2> B 1,210,316 962,867
Marketing IS HEE 669,223 560,028
Operating lease charges on premises BT & HEE A 5,496,641 5,462,066
Depreciation e 8 874,540 862,844
Other premises expenses HMEFATE A 1,215,038 1,217,564
Communications AR 621,454 609,141
Professional development BHEERMAFESH
seminar expenses 2,156,362 733,460
Travelling and entertainment EIR MR E 375,338 320,248
Bank charges RITFEE 789,116 655,975
Legal and professional fees FENEERGER 343,355 109,337
Repair and maintenance WIS LIRS 1,272,818 1,279,945
Management information system BEEENERES 268,822 39,979
Miscellaneous expenses HIB Y H 237,586 235,569
$ 44,823,450 39,527,443
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Note 2015 2014

BaE

Surplus/(deficit) before taxation BATRER (EE) $ 3,154,600 $ (1,965,904)
Income tax EREY - _
Surplus/(deficit) for the year AEEEALZEES

transferred to general fund WEE(EE) 12 3 3,154,600 $ (1,965,904)
Other comprehensive income Hitb 2 W
Exchange differences on translation ~ #E /G4SN B A A

of financial statements of MEmERMEE

overseas subsidiaries HIE H =58 1,097 594
Total comprehensive income FEZHEWNEETE

for the year $ 3,155,697 $ (1,965,310)
The notes on pages 118 to 139 form part of these financial F118EF 139 BRI M B AR B A —
statements. B o



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR R

At 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) Z&—HRF= A =+—H (LAEKYIR)

Note 2015 2014
B
Non-current assets FREBEE
Fixed assets BT & E 8 $ 943,936 $ 1,389,186
Deposits b 45,765 1,504,485
$ 989,701 $ 2,893,671
Current assets RENEE
Inventories — study materials FE —WEMH $ 119,225 % 119,885
Deposits, prepayments and Be  BENRK
other receivables H b fE U =k 9 3,438,434 1,271,890
Cash and cash equivalents BENIREEED 10 36,886,888 27,316,506
$ 40,444,547 § 28,708,281
Current liabilities REAE
Accruals and other payables fETE R N E M ENK 11 $ 2,787,358 % 1,657,269
Deferred income RIEU A 11 8,506,041 2,959,531
$ 11,293,399 $ 4,616,800
Net current assets hBEERE $ 29,151,148 $ 24,091,481
Net assets BEZEE $ 30,140,849 $ 26,985,152
Representing: (A5
General fund TEES 12 $ 30,110,076 $ 26,955,476
Exchange reserve B RS 12 30,773 29,676
$ 30,140,849 $ 26,985,152

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
16 September 2015.

Mr Craig Lindsay
Directors
Mr Stephen Wong

—_ — — ~— —

The notes on pages 118 to 139 form part of these financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FUND
GEEREESEER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BiZ —Z—RF = A=+ —HIEFE (UBEHITR)

General Exchange Total
fund reserve equity
TRES bE N HEmiREE
Balance at 1 April 2013 R-T—=%
WA—HE&ERR $ 28921380 $ 29,082 § 28,950,462
Deficit for the year FNEE (1,965,904) - (1,965,904)
Other comprehensive FAEMEEKES
income for the year - 594 594
Balance at 31 March 2014 RH=-—ZT—&F
and 1 April 2014 =A=+—HFK
—ZE-F
A —BW&ER $ 26,955,476  $ 29,676 % 26,985,152
Surplus for the year FRRALR 3,154,600 — 3,154,600
Other comprehensive FREMEE I E
income for the year - 1,097 1,097
Balance at 31 March 2015 RHR=-ZT—H &
=ZA=+—H
Y A5 R $ 30110076 $ 30,773 '$ 30,140,849
The notes on pages 118 to 139 form part of these financial FNBEF 139 ANMEBE AN BIHRKA —
statements. B o



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BiZ2 —Z—RF = A=+ —HIEFE (UBEHITR)

Note 2015 2014
BaE

Surplus/(deficit) for the year KEERE (BFE) $ 3,154,600 $ (1,965,904)
Adjustments for: FEIFF

Interest income 2 U A (237,293) (192,366)

Depreciation e 874,540 862,844
Operating profit/(loss) before EEESEHAN

changes in working capital R (&18) $ 3,791,847 $ (1,295,426)
Decrease in inventories FERIEE 660 969
Increase in placement with banks RITFRIE INER (260,437) (153,149)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, %% TR E b fE

prepayments and other receivables Wk (32n) i (707,823) 231,559
Increase in accruals and FEETE A R H A E

other payables IR NEE 1,130,089 848,030
Increase/(decrease) in ELEUW AL I, CRi )

deferred income 5,546,510 (260,481)
Net cash generated from/(used in) & FEELE (FFA)

operating activities HIEEEEE $ 9,500,846 $ (628,498)
Investing activities REED
Interest received A E $ 237,293 $ 192,366
Payment for purchase of fixed assets B AEE & E R (429,291) (63,100)
Net cash (used in)/generated REZEE (FrA) EBx

from investing activities WIS S5E $ (191,998) $ 129,266
Net increase/(decrease) in cash BERBRESZEEY

and cash equivalents ®i, (Rd) B8 $ 9,308,848 $ (499,232)
Cash and cash equivalents at REAHNESRES

beginning of the year EEY 8,157,324 8,655,962
Effect of foreign exchange ERS{HTE

rate changes 1,097 594
Cash and cash equivalents R=A=+—HH

as at 31 March RERRSEEY 10 $ 17,467,269 $ 8,157,324

F 118 2% 139 B WM B AY B mEK A —

o o

The notes on pages 118 to 139 form part of these financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAB#7%I7R)

Status and principal activities of the
Institute

The Institute was incorporated on 28 November 1997
under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance as a
company limited by guarantee.

Every member of the Institute has undertaken to
contribute such an amount as may be required (not
exceeding $100) to the Institute’s assets if it should be
wound up while he is a member or within one year after
he ceases to be a member.

The Institute and its subsidiaries (the “group”) offer those
who are interested in pursuing a career within the financial
services industry a comprehensive programme of high
quality professional training, events and internationally
recognised examinations which aim to assist individuals
achieve their own professional goals within the industry.

Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 15 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7R)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

(c)

Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute © Annual Report 2015

statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2015 comprise the Institute and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Investment in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group.
The group controls an entity when it is exposed to,
or has the right to, variable returns from the
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns by its power over the entity.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investment in subsidiaries (Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

In the Institute’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(h)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2(h)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of fixed assets, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Leasehold improvements Over the term of lease
- Computer equipment Jyears
- Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of fixed assets are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in statement of comprehensive income
on the date of retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 15 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7R)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(e) Revenue recognition
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)  Subscriptions from members
Subscriptions represent entrance fees from
new members and annual fees from existing
members. Entrance fees from new members
are recognised as income when the applicant
has been approved as a member of the
Institute by the Membership Committee and
the fees have been received. Annual fees from
existing members are recognised as income by
the Institute over the period to which they
relate. The unrecognised portion of annual
fees is recorded as deferred income in the
statement of financial position.

(ii) Income from professional development
seminars, continuing professional training
courses and examinations
Such income is recognised when the related
seminar, course or examination has been held.

(iii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

(iv) Sales of study materials
Revenue is recognised when study materials
are sold to customers which is taken to be the
point in time when the customer has accepted
the study materials and the related risk and
rewards of ownership.

(f) Foreign currencies translation
Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the reporting
date.

Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute © Annual Report 2015
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Foreign currencies translation (Continued)
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Items of statement of
financial position are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
reporting date. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised directly in a separate component of

equity.

Operating lease charges

Leases of assets under which the lessor has not
transferred all the risks and benefits of ownership
are classified as operating leases.

Where the group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to the statement of comprehensive
income in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to the
statement of comprehensive income in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Impairment of assets
(i)  Impairment of trade and other receivables

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts
are measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted where
the effect of discounting is material.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 15 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7R)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h)

Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute © Annual Report 2015

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to identify indications that the following assets
may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

= fixed assets; and

— investment in subsidiaries (except for
those classified as held for sale or
included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale)

If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet
available for use and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of time
value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h)

(i)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

- Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income whenever
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

—  Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 15 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7R)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

()

(k)

()

Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute © Annual Report 2015

Inventories (Continued)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
oceurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
less impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts,
except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts (see note 2(h)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2 TESFHHER®
(m) Employee benefits (m) EEER

(i)  Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution plans and
the cost to the Institute of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

(i)  Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Fund Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as
an expense in the statement of comprehensive
income as incurred.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the group or the Institute
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 15 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7R)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(o) Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the
group;

(i) has significant influence over the group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the group or the group’s
parent.

(b) An entity is related to the group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the group or an entity related to
the group.

Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute © Annual Report 2015

2

(o)

FTESITHER @)

BAmE S
WEIATAL  BIZAL
FZALTHLREAEE
HRARETT

(a)

72 i) 5 £ | 478 il A
£S5

HAREEEAY
5%

EAREEYIAEH
SRABIMEREE
AB e

A THMERERE - B
EREELRANEER M

ik

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

ZERBENEER
BR—&HE(BI5&
NI = NG
R & B B 1% ) R Ukt
EARIHE) -

b=11]

\

)

0|

?ﬁnlh
=
LS
5> fo
Il 30
gg_

m g8 o> m

=
iz
Y
i
I S
=
=0

1]
&

|
iE
& i

5B E A
S 1

% b0 b W

of o>
o & e (1
[1]

[§

g = m
o\
\

=

\;

I

B
=,

o

>

ZEBERAKH
3 1F 2 AN 5 B R B
TR ERNE
5 18 I i &% 7O Bt B
&iERIEHE o



2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(o) Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

(p) Non-reciprocal contributions from third
parties
Non-reciprocal contributions from third parties that
compensate the group for expenses incurred are
recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the group and the Institute. None of these
amendments or interpretations have resulted in changes
in accounting policy.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and
Audit”, of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) came into operation at the start of the Institute’s
current financial year. The adoption of the requirements
has primarily impacted the presentation and disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial statements.
These changes mainly include the presentation of the
Institute’s statement of financial position as a note
disclosure instead of a primary statement, updating any
references to the CO to refer to the current CO and
replacing certain terminology no longer used in the CO
with terminology used in HKFRS.

The group and the Institute have not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 15 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7R)

4 Staff costs

8 TR A

2015 2014

Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEMEAMEFR]

Contributions to provident fund NESHE

25,420,781 $ 22,071,144
681,141 581,527

26,101,922 % 22,652,671

Auditors’ remuneration

The position of the auditors of the Institute is honorary
and therefore no auditors’ remuneration was paid during
the year (2014: $Nil).

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation is as follows:

BB

A M BT 6714 3 AT
Bt - AR R EETB (=
TF  BBBIT) -

ERka
IRIBE (A THRDIE 383 1R B A
A(REE SR AR B F 25
SR BT

2015 2014

Emoluments as executive EE= 5
Retirement benefits RREF

Payments made or benefit provided in B IRFS 4L 1F1EH B R

respect of the termination of services iR LAY E I

1,293,624 $ 2,379,600

1,293,624 $ 2,379,600

Taxation

The Institute is a professional association and not more
than half of the receipts by way of subscriptions are from
persons who would be entitled to claim their
subscriptions as allowable deductions for the purpose of
Hong Kong Profits Tax. The Institute is therefore not
subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax under section 24(2) of
the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance. Accordingly,
no provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in
the financial statements.
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8 Fixed assets 8 EEE&EE

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Computer
improvements equipment equipment Total
B&E -
EERERN
HERE POERE BRRE BE
Cost: A
At 1 April 2014 W-ZE—MEMA—H $ 3,358,045 $ 1,962,478 $ 5931066 $ 11,251,589
Additions BE - 318,121 111,169 429,290
At 31 March 2015 RZE—h4
=R=+—A~ $ 3,358,045 $ 2280599 $ 6,042,235 $ 11,680,879
Accumulated depreciation: ~ BFITE :
At 1 April 2014 RZZE—MEMA—H $ 2738332 $ 1544842 § 5579229 $ 9,862,403
Charge for the year AEEHE 434,257 211,263 229,020 874,540
At 31 March 2015 RZE—hE
=A=+—"H $ 3172589 $ 1,756,105 $ 5,808,249 $ 10,736,943
Net book value: FREFE
At 31 March 2015 RZE—AF
EEET—E $ 185456 $ 524494 $ 233986 $ 943,936
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Computer
improvements equipment equipment Total
CES
B EEM
HEEXE WAERME EhRE it
Cost: A
At 1 April 2013 R-ZT—=F#WA—H § 3358045 §$ 1948878 $ 5831566 $§ 11,188,489
Additions BE - 13,600 49,500 63,100
Exchange difference P& % = = = =
At 31 March 2014 RZE—NF
=ZA=+—H $ 3358045 § 1962478 $ 5931066 $ 11,251,589
Accumulated depreciation: ~ ZFHTE :
At 1 April 2013 R-Z—=FWA—H8 § 2304075 §$ 1469449 $ 5226035 § 8999,559
Charge for the year AEEHE 434,257 75,393 353,194 862,844
At 31 March 2014 RZZE—MF
=A=1+—H $ 2738332 § 1544842 § 5579229 $§ 9,862,403
Net book value: REFE
At 31 March 2014 RZE—NF
EHET—E $ 619713 § 417,636 % 351837 § 1,389,186




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 15 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7R)

9 Deposits, prepayments and other 9
receivables

All of the prepayments and other receivables are
unsecured, interest free and expected to be recovered or
expensed in profit or loss within one year.

10 Cash and cash equivalents 10

Zd c BN REMERK
o
TA

P 7B TE A R SR At FE MR 5035 75 SR 4K
- 2EMEBEFAR —FAKE

He MREEEY

2015 2014

Deposits with banks and other financial 87781 H fih & Bt RE1F

institutions $ 36,875,236 $ 27,305,575
Cash at bank and in hand RITFZNIR S 11,652 10,931
Bank balances and cash in the B RS AR R TR B9 SR 1T

statement of financial position EEERS $ 36,886,888 $ 27,316,506

Fixed deposits with banks with original R 14 %I HA HARR #2383 18 A
maturity over three months BERTTE HF R

(19,419,619) (19,159,182)

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash H&RERATHIRE

flow statement KIREEEY $

17,467,269 $ 8,157,324

11 Accruals and other payables and deferred 11
income

All of the accruals, other payables and deferred income
are unsecured, interest free and are expected to be
settled or earned as income within one year.
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12 General fund and exchange reserve 12

(a) General fund

& ME W
(a) %Egﬁ

The group The Institute
r5EE re
2015 2014 2015 2014
General fund at beginningof ~ FHEEES
the year $26,955,476 § 28921380 $26,923,481 $ 28,631,877
Surplus/(deficit) for the year AEEEEEH
transferred from the e T
consolidated statement of B/ (5A)
comprehensive income 3,154,600 (1,965,904) 2,829,931 (1,708,396)
General fund at 31 March R=A=1+—HH
LEES $30,110,076 § 26955476 $29,753,412 § 26,923,481
The Securities and Futures Commission (“the SFC") BEE= ([SFCl) REZE

provided funding of $2 million, $3 million and $10
million to the Institute in the years ended 31 March
2000, 31 March 1999 and 31 March 1998 respectively.
As at 31 March 2015, the total funding from the SFC
amounted to $15 million (2014: $15 million). This
funding is non-refundable, non-interest bearing, and
repayable only in the event that the Institute is
wound up.

Surpluses or deficits are transferred to or from the
statement of comprehensive income in accordance
with the memorandum and articles of association
and shall be applied solely towards the promotion
of the objects of the Institute as set forth in the
memorandum and articles of association.

gggi_ﬁ Eaq = El

—NWANE=ZA=+—8BxK
—NAANE=A=+—HItF
EoRlmAgiREESEBR
BET ABM=-EBETRBIK
—FET -R-_E—HFE=A
=t— HEBIZESRMEN
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— T @E-%% ?ﬁﬁ%
Jo) o BEBESATIRE -

B IR@E$Eﬁ%%E<

BHRABEEREASNERE
BAANANEARELEE
Wak TREGARESE
TRAM K AR FTE R B 4R -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 15 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7R)

12 General fund and exchange reserve
(Continued)

12 TRESME N FE @

(b) Exchange reserve (b) EREE
2015 2014

Exchange reserve at beginning of the & #I[E &

year $ 29,676 $ 29,082
Exchange difference on translation of &GN E A 7181 7

financial statements of overseas HREENER =2

subsidiaries 1,097 594
Exchange reserve as at 31 March REZA=+—RANELREE $ 30,773 §$ 29,676
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign EREERSEAREFIER
exchange differences arising from the translation of S MRATELRN ZERE R
the financial statements of foreign operations. The R o [E W IR IR EE 20 P
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the IS ETHRERE -

accounting policies set out in note 2(f).

13 Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign
currency risks arises in the normal course of the group's
and the Institute’s business. The group’s and the
Institute’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the group
and the Institute to manage these risks are described
below.

(a) Credit risk
The group and the Institute do not hold any
significant financial assets other than cash and cash
equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents held by the
group and the Institute are deposited with reputable
financial institutions.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented

by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
statement of financial position.

Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute © Annual Report 2015
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(Continued)

(c)

13 Financial risk management and fair values 13 eREREENMAALEBE
(&)
(b) Liquidity risk (b) RBEELREM
The group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity REBENBEREEHER R
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient BLENR  UBREETRD
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in RE @B mEEBANIRE
the short and longer term. HORBHESFEK -
The following table details the remaining contractual TEREI TAEBRASHE
maturities at the reporting date of the group’s and BMEENRRSEBHNFERE D
the Institute’s financial liabilities, which are based on IR ZE2mMBERNUTNR
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including WIS e (BIE T4 =
interest payments computed using contractual rates ji(!zﬂ%i‘? B)ER#HE BT
or, if floating, based on rates current at the reporting EHENFEMNF) ARKTEEH
date) and the earliest date the group and the MAGAX NIRRT BERZE
Institute can be required to pay:
2015 014
Total Total
contractual Within contractual Within
Carrying ~ undiscounted 1 year or Carying undiscounted 1 year or
amount cash flow on demand amount cash flow on demand
ERERiE 15RER THRIR 1EREE
FEcE RenBAE EXEE FESE GenseEs DY
Accrualsandother — EERR
payables Efb (3t $ 2787358 5 2787358 § 2787358 5 1657269 & 16572690 § 1657269
Interest rate risk (c) FIEmER
The group's and the Institute’s interest-bearing REERASHNGTEEEEE
assets mainly comprise cash at bank, which matures, BREPEHANIHAXEE SX
or reprices in the short term. As a result, the group RERITE e AL NEB K
and the Institute are subject to limited exposure to A& R BT 5 R =R & &
fluctuations in the prevailing level of market interest ZHRBRAER °
rates.
At 31 March 2015, it is estimated that a general RZE —fﬁiiﬂ =+—8-
increase of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all 5 & F = Eim - 7100 E &
other variables held constant, would increase the Eﬁ bﬂiﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁ{ﬂmﬁkﬁﬁﬂ_
group and the Institute’s surplus and general fund CBRETEEENR gi“ﬁﬁ =
by approximately $152,913 and $152,814 $%.&$§Qﬁ%ﬂ ERES
respectively (2014: $261,854 and $261,755) so far as JE 45 R L 8 N 4975 8K 152,913 7T
the effect on interest-bearing financial assets is ?D/%VHKASZ 814L(ZZ—M4F :
concerned. B 5 261,854 7T H 7S ¥4 261,755
JT) e
BEBLALREREG o _T—LFFRH



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 15 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7R)

13 Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk

13 2RiEMEEBNARLEBE

(&)
(d) E¥EE
The group and the Institute are exposed to currency REBRAGRAXNEEE
risks primarily arising from transactions that are BREZRREEAARBE
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"). In respect of MRS > RAAREER
transactions denominated in RMB, the group Ro NEBEHRERAAST
monitors its exposure on a regular basis. WEBERE -
(i)  Exposure to currency risk (i) EXEEHEE
The following table details the group’s TRAFMAEERARGER
exposure at the reporting date to currency risk HEAUREEREEGH
arising from recognised assets or liabilities M EE SN B EHE
denominated in a currency other than the WEEREENBEME
Institute’s functional currency. EREBRREE
2015 2014
Renminbi Renminbi
ARM AR
Hong Kong dollar equivalent: Z{E/&% :
Cash and cash equivalents HeREESZEY $ 356,575 § 22,779
Net exposure to currency risk — E¥EKIFE $ 356,575 % 22,779
The Institute does not have any exposures to g JmAAZERIMNER
foreign currencies. B o

Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute © Annual Report 2015



(Continued)

(e)

13 Financial risk management and fair values 13 sREREEMALEE
(&)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥mEbs(E)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BUBRESH
The following table indicates the approximate TRIFRImER - K&
change in the group’s surplus for the year and BHARFERBRNERE
general fund in response to reasonably %.FETQBMXE’JEﬁJ—L
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates % MY PE R G MAE Al e &
to which the group has significant exposure at ﬁﬁﬂjfﬁﬂ’]ﬁ%’]ﬁfb Tg £
the reporting date. Other components of E’]Eﬁﬂiﬂﬁiﬁﬁ’\ Nl
equity would not be affected by changes in the EREEN R
foreign exchange rates.
2015 2014
Appreciation/ Effect on  Appreciation/ Effect on
(depreciation) surplus for  (depreciation) deficit for the
in foreign the year and in foreign year and
currency general fund currency general fund
NEHE/ HEFERHA  MNEAHES  HAEEEEN
(RfE) EEESHEE (RfE) LREenyE
Renminbi ARE 10% $ 35,658 0% $ 2,278
The sensitivity analysis above has been A ESURRE AT R REREE
determined assuming that the change in TR S BIRE T
foreign exchange rates had occurred at the WHREXSEHREANES
end of the reporting period and had been EZRAEFENERIA
applied to the Institute’s exposure to currency FRE SR SNE R - &
risk for financial instruments in existence at that ERZMAEHMEE (5
date, and that all other variables, in particular B EFE) RIFAE - BT
interest rates, remain constant. The stated M ERREEEHNRE
changes represent management’s assessment BHEEE T —®REHR
of reasonably possible changes in foreign PR BAEE Al se BT
exchange rates over the period until the end of it e Bk E - AEER
next reporting period. In this respect, it is R TR H A E Y ]
assumed that the pegged rate between the KEZHH I e HBTHE
HKD and the USD would be materially ETHBBERBREK
unaffected by any changes in movement in WRE - ZOMEE_E
value of the USD against other currencies. The —PHF )[R —EAEHETT o
analysis is performed on the same basis for
2014.
Fair value (e) AREHE
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not ETMIAKREEAR_-ZT
materially different from their fair values as at 31 —HENM_ZT-—HF=A
March 2015 and 2014. =t+—HORABEHRES
PR S FAER o
BEBLRIRERE o —hLEFH



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 15 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7R)

14

15

16

Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute © Annual Report 2015

Commitments

At 31 March 2015, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases on
properties are payable as follows:

14

Z37
W=Z-HEF=A=+—R  REF
ATARIR AOAE TR T B (R 0 R
BE I :

2015 2014

Within 1 year —F R $ 5,110,548 $ 6,097,690
After 1 year but within 5 years —FREAFA 17,245,613 1,862,919
$ 22,356,161 $ 7,960,609

The Institute is also committed to a payment of $3,215,000
for the Project For Replacement of Internal Management
Information System within one year.

Contingent liability

During the year, the Institute received grants from the
Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”) which was
subject to a repayment clause. HKSI is required to repay
$5 million of the total grant received for the year ended
31 March 2015 to the SFC in any given year upon the
HKSI's attainment of a reserve amounting to the higher of
(a) $50 million or (b) two years’ operating expenses, as
reflected in the Institute’s annual accounts. Based on a 5
year forecast regarding the financial performance of the
Institute, the management do not believe it probable that
the Institute will attain the level of reserve that will trigger
the repayment clause in the foreseeable future. No
provision has therefore been made in respect of the
repayment.

Material related party transactions

Apart from the balances disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Institute did not enter any
material related party transactions.

15
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17 Institute-level statement of financial 17 7K % RZE—RF=H
position at 31 March 2015 = E’]Eﬂ‘%ﬂﬁfﬁ%
Note 2015 2014
Bz
Non-current assets EREBEE
Fixed assets EFE&E 937,995 $ 1,378,010
Deposits ey 45,765 1,504,485
Investment in subsidiary R B A RRIEE 100 100
983,860 $ 2,882,595
Current assets REEE
Inventories — study materials FE — 28 119,225 §$ 119,885
Prepayments and other receivables T8/ BR 20 EL e Uit ¢ 3,423,833 1,242,290
Amounts due from subsidiaries Al NG E Q] 1,610 1,110
Cash and cash equivalents BERIBLZEEBY 36,518,004 27,279,064
40,062,672 % 28,642,349
Current liabilities nEEE
Accruals and other payables &R N E M ENTR 2,787,079 % 1,641,932
Deferred income EIEWA 8,506,041 2,959,531
$ 11,293,120 § 4,601,463
Net current assets FEHEETE $ 28,769,552 $ 24,040,886
Net assets EEFE $ 29,753,412 § 26,923,481
Representing: KK :
General fund ETEES 12 $ 29,753,412 % 26,923,481

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of EERN T —AFNATBZE

directors on 16 September 2015. WEFAIEEH o

) )
Mr Craig Lindsay ) MEHSEE )

) Directors ) 5=
Mr Stephen Wong ) FrEEEL )

) )



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 15 R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7R)

18 Possible impact of amendments, new 18
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March
2015 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Institute.

EBMERRERE_T
—HAF=A=+—HI*F
JE LA ERT ~ 7 2E Bl
SR gEE RN E

BEAPBHRRTIER  BESH
AEERMETHEEEZE_T—40F
A=+ —BIEFERRER - THR
B FE AN B 7 R SR BR R B (B BT AT
A o FLERBLBIE IR BEEAR
SAENER -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after
EATEBRZ%E
BN E T IBEXN

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and amortisation

CEBSEERD)FE 6 [ A/ X ITE R #7578 ] &% 385 28]

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

(EBMBRELEN)EIR LA T A

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(BEMBEREERDFE 155 [HEFTAZ WA S

The group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the group'’s results of operations and financial
position.
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MEMBERS’ CODE OF ETHICS
Sl

Members must:

Act in their client’s interest, in particular, in priority to their own
in a situation where conflicts occur. Members must disclose any
material interest or conflicts of interest to their clients and must
take all reasonable steps to ensure fair treatment of their
clients. They should act in good faith and exercise
independence in making professional judgements.

Carry out their work with due and reasonable skill and care and
in accordance with the current best industry practice and the
highest ethical, professional and technical standards expected
of them as Members of the HKSI Institute.

Ensure that they are, and remain, competent to carry out the
duties that their profession requires.

Encourage the training of young practitioners who are under
their authority and give proper supervision and guidance to
them.

Obey all applicable laws and regulations of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, all rules and regulations enforced by
the competent authorities, and follow the spirit as well as the
letter of all relevant laws.

Not engage in any illegal, dishonest or misleading behaviour
that might have a negative impact on their reputation as
Members or bring dishonour or disrepute upon the HKSI
Institute or its other Members.

EENE:

EHRARERE @8 NARKUER
FEBKE  BPANEELIRAFHF
wme BENART P EBETMEARMEK
Fles@ze  WHRI—YAEBEBRERER
EBSATHF gBREMTSE  FFEH
BE LB RRIFEL o

MITTIER - @EBLAKRKREREE RS
BRI RER KERITHORETRE
PIITE  WEEESAZEGERANR
=B  BERIMIKF

3 AR IERRG K AR —E BT
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